Public Document Pack

C\";GDII .
e i1y Flint
I " Contact Officer:
Eﬁ!!ﬂrtigbnl re Sharon Thomas 01352 702324

sharon.b.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

To: Councillor Clive Carver (Chairman)

Councillors: Marion Bateman, Paul Cunningham, Peter Curtis, Andy Dunbobbin,
Robin Guest, Ron Hampson, Ray Hughes, Richard Jones, Brian Lloyd,
Vicky Perfect, Paul Shotton, lan Smith, Nigel Steele-Mortimer and Arnold Woolley

6 January 2017
Dear Councillor
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny
Committee which will be held at 10.00 am on Thursday, 12th January, 2017 in the
Delyn Committee Room, County Hall, Mold CH7 6NA to consider the following items

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES
Purpose: To receive any apologies.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING
DECLARATIONS)

Purpose: To receive any Declarations and advise Members accordingly.

3  PEOPLE STRATEGY 2016-2019 (Pages 3 - 18)

Report of Senior Manager, Human Resources & Organisational Development
- Cabinet Member for Corporate Management

Purpose: To consider the draft People Strategy 2016-2019.

4  DIGITAL STRATEGY (Pages 19 - 34)

Report of Chief Officer (Governance) - Cabinet Member for Corporate
Management

Purpose: To provide an update and feedback from the Workshop held in
December



WORKFORCE INFORMATION REPORT - QUARTER 2 2016/17 (Pages 35 -
68)

Report of Senior Manager, Human Resources & Organisational Development
- Cabinet Member for Corporate Management

Purpose: To consider the Workforce Information Report for Quarter 2 of
2016/17.

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2016/17 (MONTH 8) (Pages 69 - 108)

Report of Chief Executive - Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for
Finance

Purpose: "This regular monthly report provides the latest revenue budget
monitoring position for 2016/17 for the Council Fund and
Housing Revenue Account. The position is based on actual
income and expenditure as at Month 8, and projects forward to
year-end.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 109 - 114)

Report of Democratic Services Manager

Purpose: To consider, and amend where necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

Yours sincerely

SN

Robert Robins
Democratic Services Manager



Agenda Iltem 3

Sir y Fflint
"E!m!o%!z.ire

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Date of Meeting Thursday 12 January 2016
Report Subject People Strategy 2016-2019
Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Corporate Management
Report Author Senior Manager, Human Resources and Organisational
Development
Type of Report Strategic
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

To achieve the Councils vision for the next five years we will need our organisation
to be innovative, agile, connected and transparent, with workforce issues high on
the agenda.

Much work took place during 2014/2015 to develop the Council’s People Strategy
which reflects our changing organisation and the changing world of work. It also
plays an important part in the achievement of the Councils aspirations, ambitions
and values of being a modern, high performing and trusted public sector
organisation.

This report provides an update on the People Strategy work, incorporating the
finding and actions resulting from the independent corporate assessment
undertaken by the PA group.

Attached to the report is an updated People Strategy 2016-2019 that has been
designed to be a simple yet meaningful document which is easily accessible and
provides a clear vision and outcomes for future work force related work across the
organisation.

Moving the strategy forward is critical so it is clear in terms of priorities, actions,
roles and responsibilities. There are key actions for Human Resource and
Organisational Development. Equally as important is the clarity it provides about
the roles and responsibilities of Chief Officers, Managers/Supervisors and
Employees in the delivery of this strategy.

Page 3



RECOMMENDATIONS

1

That Committee endorses the revised People Strategy 2016-2019
including the vision, outcomes and priorities and the specific roles and
responsibilities of Human Resources and Development, Chief Officers,
Managers/Supervisors, and employees, in implementing this strategy.

2. That the Committee supports the development of a detailed action plan
which will be shared in draft for comment before being taken to Cabinet.
3. That the Committee invites period performance reports against key

success measures (twice per annum).

REPORT DETAILS

1.00

DEVELOPMENT OF THE PEOPLE STRATEGY 2016-2019

1.01

The new People Strategy has been developed against a backdrop of rapid
change. Firstly the changing face of local government in Wales with the
role of the Council now fully including not just delivery of services, but
commissioning of different types of service provision, and enabling
communities to deliver services. This includes implementing a range of
emerging priories from the strategy e.g. full implementation of the Councils
appraisal scheme and consolidating emerging priorities from an
independent assessment of corporate services.

1.02

The 2016-2019 People Strategy builds on a set of foundations set by
previous strategies which includes:

e A good track record of achievement with the successful implementation
of Single Status and settlement of Equal Pay claims,

Creation of an Employment Service Centre

Implementation of agile and flexible working

Providing an integrated end-to-end HR Transactional service
Development of e-learning modules to support Alternative Delivery
Models, leadership and management development

1.02

The scale of organisational change and ‘leaning’ over the preceding few
years has been rapid as a result significant changes to service delivery
and operating models across service portfolios and the introduction of a
voluntary redundancy programme, which, following two formal cycles,
remains open on a rolling basis. This has resulted in significant turnover
and loss of experienced people leaving the organisation and places a
stronger emphasis and importance on managing our talent, succession
planning and taking a more creative approach to our reward strategy.

1.03

We have successfully managed the organisational changes undertaken to
date and confident the next phase of necessary change will be as
successfully managed. Following the initial voluntary redundancy
programme we undertook a voluntary self- assessment of our performance
in managing what was a major programme of workforce reduction against
the recommendations of the \Wales Audit Office in it's national study of

Page 4




public sector practice and performance. The Council either met or
exceeded each of the relevant recommendations.

1.04 | Through development of the strategy, including member workshops and
discussions with unions, we have identified five key strategic objectives
that will enable the vision to be realised, these are:

e Planning the Workforce of the Future;

e Developing Workforce and Leadership Capacity ;
e Managing Performance;

¢ Recognition and Reward;

e Enabling Change through Alternative Models.

1.05 | For 2016-19 this enables the identification of a clear vision, outcomes and

priorities.

To achieve the vision we need the whole of our workforce to be:

e Customer focused;

e Aspirational and optimistic with a ‘can do’ attitude;

¢ Resilient to the challenges ahead;

e Motivated, talented, competent and skilful;

e Dynamic and responsive to the changing needs of our residents,
customers and stakeholders.

If the strategy is achieved, some of the key outcomes will be:

¢ Increased leadership and management capability;

¢ A single consolidated workforce plan and supporting action plans;

e Change will be managed fairly, consistently and transparently;

¢ An environment in which managers are given the authority to
take/accept responsibility;

e A workforce which is encouraged and supported to consider the health
and well-being of themselves and others;

e Simplified policies and procedures which are accessible and easy to
read;

e Improved attendance management interventions; and

e The development of an effective pay, recognition and reward
framework.

1.06 | Communication and ownership are key to the success of the People
Strategy. For the first time the strategy is clear about the role of Human
Resources, Chief Officers, Managers and Supervisors and Employees in
support of each of the key strategic objectives. Alternative communication
methods and forums are being considered to ensure the strategy and
associated action plan are easily accessible and understood by the whole
of our workforce.

1.07 | If the aims of the strategy are achieved then it will contribute to the

achievement of the Council’'s Improvement Priorities without any extra
resource. It will also ensure that the workforce is able to respond to future
challenges facing the council.

D |
Page o




1.08

A detailed action plan is being developed which will highlight the
immediate, medium and long-term priorities (including success measures)
to enable the delivery of each of the strategic objectives detailed at 1.04.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | The strategy can be delivered within current resources.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | None. Any changes to policy or practice as a result of the strategy will be
undertaken in line with the Human Resources policy framework and
subject to an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA).

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 Implementing the strategy should not create or generate any new risks for
the council.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix A — Proposed People Strategy 2016-2019

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None
Contact Officers: Sharon Carney
Telephone: 01352 702139
E-mail: sharon.carney@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | Commissioning of Services — The development of service provision that

includes the specifying of requirements and procurement of organisations
other than the Council to deliver services.

Page 6




Flintshire County Council
People Strategy 2016 — 2019
Supporting a Modern and Efficient Council

Introduction

The organisation and its services are embarking on a further period of significant
change, as described in the improvement plan, and portfolio business plans. We will
only achieve our ambitions and be successful with this change through our people.
Engaging our people fully and developing the skills, attitudes and behaviours we will
need in the future is a priority.

The 2016-19 People Strategy builds on a set of foundations set by previous strategies
plus early work on this strategy in 2015, these include:

e A good track record of achievement with the successful implementation of Single
Status and settlement of Equal Pay claims,

e Creation of an Employee Service Centre,

e Providing an integrated end-to-end HR Transactional service;

e Electronic Document Management (EDM) which has enabled the merger of HR,
Payroll and Education Staffing files;

e Further development of the Apprenticeship Scheme,

e Implementation of agile and flexible working,

e Development of e-learning modules to support Alternative Service Delivery
Models, leadership and management development

e Introduction of a competency based appraisal and talent management system.

The Strategy is designed to ensure that as a Council, we are able to adapt flexibly to
the challenging pace of change within the public sector but also to respond to the
changing context of local government at a local, regional and national level. Many of
the themes from the previous strategy are still relevant, but there is an increased focus
on how we plan to develop and support our people during this time of change. For
some people, periods of change can cause uncertainty. For others change brings new
possibilities and is something to be relished. During these times communication and
leadership are more important than ever.

This strategy also plays an important part in the achievement of the Council’s
aspirations, ambitions and values of being a modern, high performing and trusted
public sector organisation. Further, it has been informed by the Councils other key
strategies, most importantly the Councils Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS)
and the Councils Improvement Plan.

Page 7



Vision for our future workforce

This people strategy has been developed against a background of rapid change and
sets out how the Council will adapt to meet the opportunities and challenges envisaged
through the life of this strategy in supporting a Modern and Efficient council.

To achieve this we need the whole of our workforce to be:

e Customer focused

e Aspirational and optimistic with a ‘can do’ attitude

¢ Resilient to the challenges ahead

e Motivated, talented, competent and skilful

e Dynamic and responsive to the changing needs of our residents, customers and
stakeholders

How will we achieve our vision?
The strategic priorities for 2016-2019 are:

Planning the Workforce of the Future
Developing Workforce and Leadership Capacity
Managing Performance

Recognition and Reward

Enabling Change through Alternative Models

Key Outcomes

¢ Increased leadership and management capability

¢ A single consolidated workforce plan and supporting action plans

e Change will be managed fairly, consistently and transparently

e An environment in which managers are given the authority to take/accept
responsibility

A committed, motivated, flexible and professional workforce

e A workforce which is encouraged and supported to consider the health and well-
being of themselves and others

e Simplified policies and procedures which are accessible and easy to read

¢ Improved attendance management interventions; and

e Development of an effective pay, recognition and reward framework

Guiding principles in delivery are:

e Supporting the business to achieve its objectives

e Recognising the changing work environment and adapting to those changes in a
positive manner

e Maintaining legal compliance in all aspects of our work

e Working flexibly

e Continuing to develop and support our managers and employees to adapt to
change

e Solution focussed

Page 8



Planning the workforce of the future

Having a detailed understanding of our current workforce, changes in local and
national labours markets and a vision for the future will enable us co-ordinate the
development of detailed workforce plans. These should be an integral part of the
business planning process. The plans will describe and address the gap between the
current workforce, delivering the service today and what the future workforce needs to

be to deliver the services of the future.
HR will focus on:

Supporting changes in future workforce
numbers to meet service needs

Develop job roles to support changes
and improvements in services

Being creative and building flexibility by
using none traditional working patterns.

Complying with the requirements for
which HR and OD are responsible under

the Welsh Language Standards
Regulations 2016.

To achieve this

Chief Officers will:

e Actively promote the Dbenefits

associated with good performance
management interventions.

e Ensure completion of appraisals,
career conversations and
development plans (as appropriate)
in a timely manner.

e Sharing intelligence with regard to
future service requirements affected
by internal and external factors.

Employees will

e Actively embrace performance
management interventions

e Engage with development
opportunities

High Level Actions to Support Delivery

Key Actions:

Develop workforce information that
indicates accurately the utilisation of
the workforce for each service to
include core employees/positions
and the peripheral/flexible workforce.

Design workforce plans by portfolio to
forecast requirements for the short,
medium and long-term with specific
actions for addressing challenges
and risks (i.e recruitment
difficulties/skills shortages).

Managers/supervisors will:

e Ensure completion of appraisals,
career conversations and
development plans (as
appropriate) for their areas of
responsibility in a timely manner.

e Explore none traditional working
methods to improve service
delivery and inform future working
planning.

medium and long-term.

1. Design workforce plans by portfolio to forecast requirements for the short,

2. Consider alternative methods of job design/evaluation to support the

Page 9




creation of alternative roles that meet the changing needs of the
organisation.

3. Facilitate and extend the use of flexible working options through the use of
technology.

Developing Workforce and Leadership Capacity

Page 10




We will build on the work of the previous people strategies by ensuring that our
employees have the right skills, knowledge and competencies to carry out their roles
as effectively as possible. In order to do that the organisation will need to identify gaps
in skills and knowledge, future requirements and the most appropriate means of filling

any gaps.

HR will focus on:
Knowledge, skills and competencies

Collaboration

Managing Change

To achieve this
Chief Officers will:

e Provide a consistent and high profile
lead on promoting the importance of
learning and development activities

e Be pro-active and role model the
organisations commitment to
learning through their own
development activities

Key Actions:

We will work with portfolios to identify
their learning and  development
requirements, taking into account of
future business needs including new
roles.

We will provide employees with
opportunities to develop professional
and transferable skills.

We will equip our managers with the
commercial skills and knowledge to
operate  effectively with  reducing
resources.

We will encourage and enable our
managers and teams to be proactive,
innovative and creative in delivering
services differently.

We will work with other public sector
Learning and Development providers to
identify and develop appropriate and
cost effective learning opportunities.

We will develop training programmes for
managers which recognise and promote
managing change as a key set of
competencies.

Managers/Supervisors will:

e Include relevant and achievable
individual learning plans in formal
performance management
discussions

e Support employees to realise

opportunities to develop knowledge,
skills and competencies that benefit

Page 11



Ensure that learning and both the employee and the Council
development features prominently in e Identify potential knowledge or skills

performance management gaps that may impact on current or
discussions between management future performance within their
and employees in their service area service (area of responsibility)

Employees will:

Seek opportunities for their own
development

Undertake and complete agreed
development actions

High Level Actions to Support Delivery

1.

Create a programme which supports leadership development

2.

We will improve the confidence and capability of our managers through an
organised programme of coaching, mentoring and management
development.

Develop a range of training and development interventions for managers and
employees to include stress awareness and stress management e-learning
modules, face to face workshops and mental health first aid to support the
overriding attendance management strategy.

Further develop the apprenticeship programme as a ‘talent pool’ for the future

Managing Performance

Page 12




We want our employees to be focused on delivering against their objectives and
motivated to deliver services to a high standard for the benefit of the citizens of
Flintshire. To support and enable this, our managers need to have access to timely,
accurate management information.

HR will focus on: Key Actions:

Performance Appraisal Improve individual and team
performance by implementing the
competency based appraisal for all
employees.

Implement talent management

interventions to identify our talent at
every level of the organisation.

Provision of meaningful and timely
management information

Develop a HR dashboard for services
and schools which provides suitably
detailed in an accurate, consistent and
timely manner to support managers

in the effective and efficient
management of their services.

Attendance Management Implementing new interventions for
managing long term and frequent
absences.

Introducing a case management
approach for longer term absences
which involve the employee, the
manager, HR and Occupational Health.

To achieve this

Chief Officers will: Managers/Supervisors will:

e Provide a consistent and high profile e

lead on promoting the importance of
performance management

e Promote the use of -consistent
interventions  identified in the
attendance  management  policy

across their area of responsibility.

Employees will:

e Comply with their obligations under the

attendance management policy

Complete performance management
discussions on an annual basis.

e Identify potential knowledge or skills
gaps that may impact on current or

future performance within their
service (area of responsibility)
e Lead by example in terms of

demonstrating desired behaviours.

e Contribute positively with the appraisal process
e Undertake and complete agreed development

actions.

High Level Actions to Support Delivery

Page 13



1. Simplify the existing attendance management procedures to provide for
greater management autonomy

2. Introducing a standardised set of people objectives for employees with
management responsibilities.

3. Increase the number of services who achieve 100% attendance and 100%
appraisal completion

4. Achieve an improvement in the Health and Well-being our employees

Recognition and Reward

Page 14



We want our employees to be fairly and equitably rewarded for the work they do, within
the confines of affordability and national pay policy. We want our employees to
understand their contribution to the business, to receive suitable acknowledgement of
their contribution and to understand the role they have in shaping our future.

HR will focus on: Key Actions:

Pay and Reward We will continue to undertake Equal Pay
monitoring to identify any gender pay
gaps and develop feasible proposals to
address these.

We will explore non-financial forms of
reward and recognition to develop a
recognition culture, which acknowledges
and recognised good performance and
effort.

We will maintain an up to date
knowledge of best practice initiatives and
all legal requirements in respect of pay
and recognition.

We will provide specialist policy, advice
and guidance

Working Together We will continue to work with the
recognised trade unions and directly with
our employees on issues affecting them.

We will be as open and transparent as
possible in our communications with
employees, and their representatives.

To achieve this

Chief Officers will: Managers/Supervisors will:

¢ Maintain a consistent and high e Ensure that employees are aware of
profile lead on pay and recognition our approach to pay and recognition

e Consult as appropriate on issues e Carry out effective budget
affecting employees management

e Keep employees informed about e Manage employee expectations (not
issues affecting them and be as over-promise)

open and transparent as possible in
communications

Employees will:

e Familiarise themselves with our pay and
recognition systems, including self-service

Page 15



applications
Participate in relevant consultation
exercises affecting pay and recognition

High Level Actions to Support Delivery

1.

Create a total reward/benefits portal which provides access to a range of
benefits and savings on everyday shopping, motoring and health and well-
being spend.

Review the current pay model to ensure it meets the obligations of the
National Living Wage and consider options to ‘bridge the gap’ between the
existing pay and grading model and the Chief Officer pay model.

Explore alternative methods of communication to increase engagement
levels with our employees

Complete Equal Pay audits on an annual basis and develop proposals to
address gender gaps identified (if any).

Enabling Change through Alternative Models

Page 16




We want to help the Council protect front line services in whatever form that takes, as
it responds to external and internal challenges and evolves in terms of its size, shape
and models of service delivery. We need to equip our managers and employees with
the appropriate knowledge, skills and behaviours to be resilient and have the

confidence to try new approaches and adapt their ways of working.

HR will focus on:
Developing appropriate frameworks
(including service level agreements) to

enable managers to assess feasibility of

alternative models

Provide specialist and advice and
guidance in relation to legal obligations
regarding employment issues.

Development of bespoke e-learning
modules to support services
transitioning out of the organisation.

To achieve this

Chief Officers will:

Provide a consistent and high profile
lead on promoting the benefits of
alternative models.

Engage proactively at all levels within

Key Actions:

Provision of a model service level
agreement which details options for
continued provision of support
services.

Development of appropriate toolkits
and guidance documents for
managers (i.e. TUPE and Code of
Practice on Workforce Matters ‘Two
Tier Code’).

Provide access to a range of modules
which develop the commercial and
financial awareness/acumen of
managers transitioning out of the
organisation.

Managers/Supervisors will:

Complete performance management
discussions on an annual basis.

Identify potential knowledge or skills
gaps that may impact on current or

their area of responsibility. future performance within their
service (area of responsibility)
e Lead by example in terms of

Employees will:

High Level Actions to Support Delivery

Contribute positively to proposals for
alternative service models

Propose alternative models/ methods
of working as appropriate.

Engage openly and honestly during
periods of consultation.

demonstrating desired behaviours.

1.

self-sufficiency.

Review, rationalise, simplify and further develop HR policies and
procedures and associated management toolkits to enable greater levels of

Page 17




2, Develop programme on ADMs to prepare managers and employees for
transition.

3. Finalise model service level agreement and implement service level
agreements for all portfolios.

Delivering the Strategy
How will we deliver the strategy?

The first key activity is the development of a detailed action plan which will identify the
priorities, the key actions, who is accountable, who is responsible and when the
actions will be completed.

The immediate priorities to be taken forward for the remainder of 2016/17 and into
2017/18 include actions in support of the following:

Developing leadership capacity
e Developing leaders
e Developing succession planning approaches and programmes

Developing workforce capacity
e Developing skills, attitudes and behaviours

Planning the workforce of the future
e Supporting changes in future workforce numbers to meet service needs
e Developing job roles to support changes and improvements in service delivery
e Being creative and building flexibility by using none traditional working patterns

Who will deliver the People Strategy?

The delivery of the strategy is the collective responsibility of the Council from Elected
Members and the Chief Officer Team to front line employees, with Human Resources
and Organisational Development (HR and OD) as part of the People and Resources
Portfolio team providing specialist expertise, advice and support.

Reporting

A detailed action plan will be refreshed annually and reported to Cabinet.

Progress against specific actions will be reported to Chief Officers and Corporate
Resources Overview and Scrutiny.

Page 18



Agenda Item 4

Sir y Fflint
("Elimsh.ire

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting Thursday, 12t January 2017
Report Subject Digital Strategy
Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Corporate Management
Report Author Chief Officer (Governance)
Type of Report Operational
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The proposed digital strategy is a replacement for the council’s existing IT
strategy. However, it takes a different approach to the strategy it replaces and
seeks to encompass all of the council’s strategic aspirations for the IT service, the
council and the whole of the county. To that end it includes strategic objectives
relating to issues such as economic development and community development
alongside objectives on IT service delivery.

The digital strategy is structured around the following 6 themes:

1. Digital customer 4. Digital partnership
2. Digital workforce 5. Information management
3. Digital business and community 6. Digital delivery

Each theme lists high level actions to be achieved by the end of the strategy that
will be supported by an annual action plan giving more details and precise
timescales. Examples of the high level actions include:
1. seeking to improve broadband speeds within the county
2. working with the 3 sector and other partners to improve digital literacy
within the community and small businesses
3. moving to digital services as the first/primary means of providing as many
council services as possible

It is proposed that the high level actions will be co-ordinated and monitored day to
day through an officer project board. Reporting and accountability for actions in
the strategy will be undertaken through the CAMMS system and the
Organisational Change OSC.

A workshop open to all members was held on 16 December 2016. Those in
attendance broadly supported the approach proposed within the strategy, and
gave helpful feedback on the critical factors needed to ensure a successful
implementation.

Page 19



RECOMMENDATIONS

1

That the Committee comments on the proposed digital strategy before its
adoption by Cabinet.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE PROPOSED NEW DIGITAL STRATEGY

1.01

The Council’'s current IT strategy has expired. As well as being
fundamental to the delivery of many council services, helping and ensuring
that others have sufficient skills and access to IT is an important element
in ensuring the future prosperity of the county. For this reason it is
proposed that the IT strategy (which talked largely about the IT Service’s
role in delivering the council’s aspirations for transformation) be replaced
by a digital strategy that contains all of the council’s strategic objectives
around digital technology. The strategy therefore contains objectives
around economic development, education and community working.

1.02

The proposed strategy which is attached at Appendix 1 is divided into the
6 themes below which reflect the different aspects of digital technology
that will need to be developed in order to help achieve the council’s
Improvement Plan Objectives. They have been developed in conjunction
with the Customer Services Strategy through detailed consultation with key
officers across all the portfolios.

i.  Digital customer — empowering customers to access the services
and information they need on line

i. Digital workforce — equipping our workforce with the right tools
and skills required to deliver “digital first” services

iii. Digital business and community — encouraging the development
of an effective digital infrastructure to maximise the opportunities
that “digital” offers to business, communities and learning centres

iv. Digital partnership — digital technology to enable the council to
work in partnership across local government, the wider public sector
and the private sector to deliver improved services and drive
change

v. Information management - a key foundation for ensuring the
success and sustainability of digital developments

vi. Digital delivery — enables the provision of resilient, robust and cost
effective IT infrastructure and systems to underpin service delivery
and facilitate organisational change.

1.03

Each of the themes contains a short statement of the council’s aspiration,
the supporting principles and a list of high levels actions that will support
the delivery of that aspiration. An annual action plan will be prepared to
ensure that the high level actions are successfully implemented.

1.04

Some of the proposed high level actions will have a wide ranging impact
upon the council. Perhaps the most significant of these is the “digital first”
approach to service delivery j.e. the agsumption that as many services and

Page 20




as much information as possible should be delivered digitally. It proposes
that digital should be promoted as the primary route of access for the
majority of council services. This will make it easier for residents to access
services or information at a time that is convenient for them rather than
requiring them to ring or attend the council during office hours.

1.05

Evidence from other councils shows that the digital first approach can save
the council money, improve accessibility of services for the majority of
residents and free up resource to improve services for those who are not
able to access the internet. Even where services are not able to be
delivered virtually (e.g. pest control or bulky waste collections) in many
cases it will still be possible to generate efficiencies through online
booking, payments or the provision of enhanced levels of information.

1.06

The workshop before Christmas sought members’ views, amongst other
things, on:

i) which should be the first or key services to deliver digitally — reporting
issues such as noisy neighbours, dog fouling, potholes and street lighting
ii) what the critical success factors will be - updates for residents once a
matter has been reported including a timeline for when the issue will be
fixed, being able to track the progress of reported issues, ease of use and
confidence in the technology.

In addition members sought reassurance that the delivery of more services
digitally would not result in segments of the population being excluded.
Experience from other councils shows that digital delivery will free up
resources that can actually improve services for those who might
otherwise be at risk of exclusion.

1.07

The extent to which the council can transform its services will need to be
explored with every service (though again we can draw on examples from
other councils). There will therefore need to be an exercise to establish
the full potential scope for this aim. As part of that scoping exercise the
resource requirements will also need to be established before the
cost/benefit can be analysed.

1.08

The strategy will be supported by a detailed action plan that breaks down
the high level actions into specific tasks and deadlines. Those actions will
feature in service plans and can be the responsibility of middle ranking and
aspiring managers as part of the Flintshire Academi. There is a need
though for complete oversight and prioritisation and it is proposed that the
customer services project board should fulfil this role.

1.09

Progress against the strategy will be recorded on the CAMMS system and
will be reported to both Cabinet and Scrutiny. The strategy will be a key
driver for changing the way the council delivers services, and so it falls
within the remit of the Organisational Change OSC. Rather than report
issues to 2 committees it is suggested that Organisational Change OSC
should take lead responsibility.

Page 21




2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

This strategy will require capital investment to maintain the current level of
IT and a 5 year cost estimate has been submitted as part of the capital
programme. The capital investment needed for objectives such as digital
first is not yet clear and will only become known as the extent of any
programme of changes becomes clear. As mentioned at 1.07 the
cost/benefit of each change will need to be assessed prior to
commencement and the decision whether or not to proceed taken based
on available resource and relative priorities at the time.

2.02

There is sufficient employee resource for the bulk of the objectives, though
again the demands of going digital first are not known. It is clear however
that the capacity to undertake large scale change has been reduced within
the organisation (especially the IT Service) and so larger projects will need
to be specifically resourced if they are to be able to proceed. Another such
example is the move to Wales Community Care Information System
(WCCIS) which, due to its sheer scale, will need specific resource
allocated to it.

2.03

The annual action plan will feed into the corporate resources strategy in
order to build a clear strategic picture of demand versus capacity. That in
turn can then be debated at the programme boards within the council and
appropriate resource allocations made at the time.

3.00

CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01

The proposed strategy has been prepared jointly by the IT Service and
Customer Services. It has been the subject of internal consultation with
officers across all portfolios.

3.02

All member workshop 16" December 2016.

4.00

RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01

Implementing the strategy should help to increase the accessibility of
services and to reduce inequality. Many of the high level actions
(particularly within the Information Governance and Digital Delivery
themes) are targeted at reducing or preventing risk

4.02

The strategy itself has been subjected to an Equality Impact Assessment.
Changes to services (especially as part of digital first) will need to be
assessed for equalities and impact on future generations as part of the
scoping exercise

5.00

APPENDICES

5.01

Appendix 1 — Proposed Digital Strategy.

Page 22




6.00

LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01

Current IT Strategy.

Contact Officer: Gareth Owens, Chief Officer Governance
Telephone: 01352 702344
E-mail: Gareth.legal@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

None.

Page 23



mailto:Gareth.legal@flintshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Digital Flintshire

Supporting a Modern &
Efficient Councll

2017 - 2022

Sir y Fflint
( Hlintshire



INntroduction

Since the development of the Council's previous IT
Strategy, rapid developments in technologies have
transformed the way that many people live their lives.
This ranges from how they purchase goods and services
to how they communicate with others. The public sector
has also seen significant change against a backdrop of
unprecedented financial challenges with little indication of
this position changing within the lifetime of this Strategy.
The future landscape for Local Government within Wales
still remains uncertain which can make planning for long
term investment in technology difficult. In the face of
these challenges, there are many examples of councils
using technology to deliver business efficiencies whilst
improving services to customers.

Within Flintshire, we have embraced technology to
deliver changes in; procurement through the introduction
of an e-Procurement solution, human resources through
introduction of manager and employee self-service;
housing maintenance through introduction of mobile
working; school admissions through development
of online application for school admission; customer
contact through development and implementation
of a fully responsive website, Customer Relationship
Management (CRM) system, contact centre telephony
and a corporate mobile APP. We have almost 2000
employees able to work in an agile way with secure
access to technology from locations of their choice. This
has supported the Council’s Asset Management Strategy
enabling the reduction of office space across the Council.
These examples represent just a few of the areas where

technology has been
used to supportimproved .
business efficiency and g“
customer service.

Within the IT service, we
have realigned resources
and investment to better
meet the Council’s priorities, the changing shape of
the organisation and the compliance requirements
surrounding information management and security.

Increased use of technology has also seen a growth in
cybercrime. Balancing the needs of the Council to deliver
flexible and reliable services to our customers whilst
also ensuring the security and integrity of our digital
infrastructure and information presents an increasing
challenge.

It is clear that technology has, and will continue to play a
significant role in the way that the council develops and
delivers services and that it will make a major contribution
to the council’s priority to deliver a ‘Modern & Efficient
Council’.

This Strategy will outline how Digital Information and
Technology will be used to support the Council’s
Improvement Priorities and strategic plans over the next
five years. A separate Information Management Strategy
will also be developed to complement it.

Page 26




Digital Flintshire: [he Vision

A > —

This digital strategy sets out how the Council will embrace the opportunities that o< . u’%
technologies offer for effective service delivery in an agile, mobile and responsive way. o
in Supporting a Modern & Efficient Council by:

e Using technology to offer customers increased flexibility in when and how they
access our services

e Providing and promoting accessible and inclusive transactional services and
information online

e Enabling our workforce to work smarter with the necessary skills and technologies to support

e Supporting our customers and communities in the use of, and access to digital technology to ensure that they can
take advantage of all of the benefits it may offer them

e Working with and supporting our businesses to maximize opportunities that digital technology offers

e Using digital technology to work and collaborate with our partners efficiently and securely, including the effective
sharing and use of data

e Ensuring that we treat Information as a key corporate asset ensuring it is compliant, accurate, relevant and secure so
that we can use it to design and deliver more effective and efficient services

e Delivering a secure, reliable, resilient and cost effective digital infrastructure that is responsive to the needs of the
council and its customers

Information Management & Compliance

Digital

Digital Digital Business &

Digital

Customer Workforce , Partnership
Community

Digital Delivery

Page 27




Digital Customer

“‘Empowering customers to access the services and
information they need online”

Principles:

Continue to move transactional services to more effective and efficient digital channels
by maximising self service

Providing services and information online to customers in a user-friendly way
Ensuring customers have the digital skills to access services and information online
Delivering accessible, inclusive services and supporting customers to adopt digital
services

Providing choice of contact method whilst balancing efficiency with service quality
Ensuring that customer needs and service efficiency are at the core of solutions
development and implementation

Delivering secure digital solutions so that customers trust us to protect their information

High Level Actions to Support Delivery:

Continued development of CRM to enable single view of the customer
Development of customer self-service facilities on the Council’s website

Effective signposting to information and online resources on the Council’s website
Working with services to ensure a “Digital First” approach to service delivery

Continue to move transactional services to more effective and efficient digital channels by
maximizing self-service

Working with local training providers, partners and 3rd sector to identify and deliver effective
customer training to ensure take up of digital services and support Digital Inclusion

Identify futher opportunities for use of social media to support service delivery

Page 28




Digital \VWorkiorce

“Equipping our workforce withthe right tools and skills
required to deliver ‘digital first’ services”

Principles:

Employees will have the digital tools and skills required to deliver services
effectively and efficiently

Providing employees access to the information they need when and
where they need it

Equipping employees with the technology they need to deliver high
performing services

Supporting employees to adopt digital change

Accelerating the move to digital only delivery where possible

Designing new services ‘digitally by default’

High Level Actions to Support Delivery:

Continued implementation and development of agile and mobile technologies to enable
employees to access business systems and information from any location

Development of mobile working to support service delivery

Implementation of collaboration and document management technologies
Appropriate workforce training to support use of digital technologies and systems
Implementation of technologies to support agile and mobile working

Extended provision of wireless in Council buildings

E-learning - Development of e-learning modules to support workforce development in use of new
and existing technologies and to promote compliance with information management legislation

Implementation of a new intranet with ability for whole workforce access

Continued development and rollout of self-service systems across workforce and schools e.g.
HR and Payroll

Page 29




Digital Business & Community

“Encouraging the development of an effective digital infrastructure
to maximize the opportunities that ‘digital’ offers to business,
communities and learning centres”

Principles:

Working with technology providers to ensure the best possible digital infrastructure and services are made available
to Flintshire’s businesses and communities

Supporting business growth in Flintshire regardless of location

Supporting strong local economies and sustainable communities

Working with partners to ensure businesses and communities have the knowledge and skills to embrace digital
opportunities

Providing information to support our young people using channels that they are most familiar with

Providing all schools with an effective digital infrastructure to support their delivery of core education services
Providing a platform for the delivery of the Digital Competency Framework to ensure all learners develop the appropriate
skills to engage in the digital world

High Level Actions to Support Delivery:

Provision and support of digital services to schools through the Council’'s new service delivery
model for Schools IT support

Provision of training and support for school staff in delivering the Digital Competency Framework
through access to Digital Leaders and the Regional Schools Improvement Service (GwWE)

Modernising public IT facilities in community settings including Libraries, Connects etc.
Support communities in the development and implementaion of town based wireless schemes

Lobbying telecommunication providers and Welsh Government to improve broadband coverage
and speed

Work with the 3rd sector and other partners to identify opportunities to improve digital literacy
within communities and small businesses

Provision of appropriate training for the Integrated Youth Provision Service (IYP) to ensure that
they are able to take full advantage of modern communication channels and emerging technology
to communicate and work with young people.

Page 30




Digital Partnersnip

“Digital technology will enable the Council to work in partnership
across local government, the wider public sector and the private
sector to deliver improved services and drive change”

Principles:

e Developing digital services with partners to deliver more joined up,
customer centric services

e Working with partners to develop and procure established technology

ensuring best value for money

Exploring opportunities for alternative service delivery models with

other public and private sector organisations

Simple and secure information sharing with partners

Embracing technologies which support and enable collaborative

service delivery such as cloud, open systems

High Level Actions to Support Delivery:

Enable the secure exchange of information with our partners
Working with partners to simplify the approach to identify management

Promotion of collaboration on regional and national projects e.g:
¢ North Wales/All Wales Public Services Directory

e Welsh Community Care Information System (WCCIS)

e All Wales Library Management System

¢ North Wales Legal Case Management System

e Capita ONE Hosted service

¢ North Wales Councils Regional Emergency Planning Service

e Procurement

Page 31




Information Vanagement

“Information Management is a key foundation for
ensuring the success and sustainability of digital developments”

Principles:

Treating information as a key corporate asset to support improved decision making and resource allocation

Driving out duplication and inconsistency in our customer, property and business data to reduce waste and have
confidence in accuracy of information

Ensuring that we actively monitor compliance with our legal obligations under Information and Records Management
and Technology legislation, regulations, statutory guidance, accreditations and standards including; Data Protection
Act 1998, Freedom of Information Act 2000, Environmental Information Regulations 2004, Re-Use of Public Sector
Information Regulations 2015 and Public Sector Network Accreditation

Ensuring compliance with security and information standards to support data exchange with other relevant partners
Proactively addressing the risks posed by evolving cyber threats and investing in appropriate detection and prevention
solutions

High Level Actions to Support Delivery:

z
2

Action

Development and delivery of an information management strategy

Development and implementation of Infrastructure and Information Security technologies
e Secure email

¢ Event and log management

¢ Unified Threat Management

Evaluation of requirements of new General Data Protection Regulations and implementation of
processes and procedures to ensure compliance

Review and development of Information Security Policies

Developement of systems and policies to support compliance with our legal obligations under
Information and Records Management and Technology legislation, regulations, statutory guidance,
accreditations and standards including; Data Protection Act 1998, Freedom of Information
Act 2000, Environmental Information Regulations 2004, Re-Use of Public Sector Information
Regulations 2015 and Public Sector Network Accreditation.

Consider ways of reducing both the physical and financial burdern of storage on the Council
whilst ensuring compliance

Use of technology to reduce duplication of data, to enable more efficient management of core
council data and to help reduce the storage burden e.g. Electronic Document Management (EDM)

Maximise the potential that information offers in improving efficiencey, resource planning and
reducing failure demand by using data visualisation tools such as Geographical Information
Systems (GIS)

Page 32

8



Digital Delivery

“Digital Delivery enables the provision of resilient, robust and cost effective IT infrastructure and
systems to underpin service delivery and facilitate organisational change”

Principles:

processes

Delivering reliable, secure and resilient IT infrastructure and systems to ensure continuity of service provision
Improved governance to ensure that investment in technology is aligned with the priorities for the organisation
Achieving best value from investments made in existing infrastructure by ensuring compliance with industry best practice
Harnessing new and emerging technologies where they can deliver increased efficiency and improved service delivery
Reducing the number of business systems and improving integration in order to standardise and simplify business

High Level Actions to Support Delivery:

(=}

Technology Roadmap (refresh of Technology Blueprint)
Development of improved governance arrangements
Facilitate the use of Welsh language through technology
Improved capacity management within the service

Effective prioritisation across the Council to ensure that resources are targeted to delivering
solutions effectively and appropriately

Support for Asset rationalisation programme

To ensure that we have a clear picture of all the corporate IT assets, their value, relevant contract
and license information and warranty and replacement schedules. This will ensure both license
compliance as we as assisting with financial asset management planning.

Implement Enterprise Unified Communications:
e Microsoft Exchange

e Skype for business

¢ |ntegrated technology

Consolidation of Business Systems:

e Removal of Lotus Notes

e Review of business systems to ensure we are getting best value from investments in 3rd part
software

e Rationalisation of systems to see if we can reduce the number of business systems with the
potential to make efficiencies from licence reduction and systemn management overheads

Implementation of Financial System to support Alternative Delivery Models (ADM’s)
Review of Masterpiece financial system
Evaluation and implementation of cloud technologies;

e Microsoft Office 365
e Microsoft Azure

Page 33

9



Governance Arrangements

There needs to be a mechanism to oversee and ensure
the effective delivery of the Digital Strategy. This will be
achieved through setting up a specific project board.
The benefit of a specific board will be that it provides
a mechanism to resolve any resource, capacity and
prioritisation issues which could occur across the range
of priorities and actions to be delivered.

¢ The Digital Strategy will be included in the Improvement
Plan for the council and the Board will therefore be
required to report on progress through the appropriate
channels.

e Any bids for resources to deliver actions which
support the delivery of the Strategy will also need to
be approved by the Board following the development
of a business case.

e The Board wil be responsible for securing
organisational acceptance of the risks associated with
selected priority and ensure that they are managed
appropriately through identified mitigation.

Page 34

Delivery
e Each priority within the Strategy should be led by a

senior manager supported by an IT Business Partner
Allocation of priority lead officers will be undertaken at
the Flintshire Management Academi.

The lead officers will sit on the Project Board in order
to report progress against their particular priority.

The lead officers will be responsible for prioritising
work and will be supported by officers and partners
with the appropriate knowledge and skills

10



Agenda Iltem 5

Sir y Fflint
("Elimsh.ire

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Thursday 12t January, 2017

Report Subject Workforce Information Report — Quarter 2 2016/17

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Corporate Management

Report Author Senior Manager, Human Resources and Organisational
Development

Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

To provide Members with an update for the second quarter for 2016/17. This
report provides details of the following:

- Headcount and Full Time Equivalent (FTE)

- Organisational Age Profile

- Employee Turnover and Stability (Including Redundancies and Early
Retirements)

- Attendance

- Performance Appraisals and Development

- Resource Management (Agency Workers)

- Equality and Diversity

The format of this report and the accompanying Workforce Information is intended
to focus on organisational performance and trends, with the information being
presented in a dashboard format. The dashboards are a visual presentation of
data, showing the current status and historical trends of the Council’s performance
against key performance indicators.

The report provides a brief narrative on the overall performance. A more detailed
explanation is provided on an exceptional basis where performance is falling below
organisational performance indicators or where there has been a significant
movement, either upwards or downwards, in the reported trends. The narrative will
include an explanation for the movement in trend and details of the actions that are
planned to improve or maintain performance.

The performance information for the whole organisation is split to show Schools
and Non-Schools data separately. The Schools data is further broken down into
Teaching and Non-Teaching.

Page 35



RECOMMENDATIONS

1

Members comment on Workforce Information Report for quarter two
2016/17

REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE WORKFORCE INFORMATION REPORT

1.01

Headcount and Full Time Equivalent (FTE)

The headcount and FTE figures show an overall decrease of 61 FTE
across the Council since April, Non-schools show a decrease of 51 FTE,
and Schools show an overall decrease of 10 FTE. Within Schools,
teaching staff show a decrease of 21 FTE whereas non-teaching staff
have increased 11 FTE.

The headcount for Non-Schools is 3,432 and the headcount for Schools is
to 3,279 equating to 6,711. However, the overall Flintshire County Council
headcount is 6,602. The anomaly of 109 is in relation to employees who
are employed in both Schools and Non-Schools positions.

1.02

Organisational Age Profile

The purpose of providing the Organisational Age Profile is to enable the
Council to provide a guide to the future number of potential retirements
and succession plan by identifying any skill gaps that may arise. Without
an analysis of age profile, no workable long term planning can be made.

1.03

Employee Turnover and Stability (Including Redundancies and Early
Retirements)

The Flintshire County Council turnover percentage as at quarter two is
6.32% which equates to a cumulative figure of 8.56% for 2016/17. This is
due to the high volumes of leavers within Schools at the end of the
academic year, and also the turnover of temporary Summer Playworkers.

1.04

Attendance

The cumulative FTE days lost as at quarter two is 4.41 against a target of
4.65. This is an improvement on the same period in 2015/16 which
recorded 4.57 FTE days lost.

1.05

Performance Appraisals and Development

Performance Appraisals remain a high priority within the Council. The
undertaking of appraisals have been carried out and recorded on iTrent
which shows significant improvement.

Page 36




1.06

Resource Management (Agency Workers)

The cumulative agency spend for 2016/17 is £2.3m. This has exceeded
the aspirational target of £1.25m at the end of the second quarter. The
majority of the agency spend is within Streetscene and Transportation
(£590,000), and Social Services (£445,000) respectively. Within Social
Services, 55% of the service quarterly spend was off-contract (outside of
Matrix SCM).

Overall, there were 168 active agency placements on 30" September
2016. From the 168 placements, 131 exceeded the 12 week Agency
Worker Regulations threshold.

Recommendations from the quarter one report included a breakdown of
placements that exceed 12 months. As at 30t September, 52 placements
had exceeded 12 months. From the 52 placements, 46 were within
Streetscene and Transportation, three within Social Services, and one
each in Community and Enterprise, Education and Youth, and Planning
and Environment.

The agency/headcount table reports on the number of agency workers
engaged within quarter two compared to the established headcount within
the service. Streetscene and Transportation shows an equivalent of 24%.
As explained in quarter one, the service were carrying a significant number
of vacancies prior to the recruitment campaign which took place
throughout August and September. 55 of those vacancies have been filled
by agency workers on long term placements and will be reflected in
quarter three.

1.07

Equality and Diversity

The importance of collecting equality and diversity information remains a
high priority. Equalities monitoring information is regularly reviewed with
measures in place to collate missing diversity data from employees.

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

Increased accuracy for reporting will allow the Council to better understand
the composition and usage of the workforce and therefore plan and
manage the largest single cost of service delivery.

3.00

CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01

None as the dashboard report appended to this report details existing
actual out-turns in the various measures.

Page 37




4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT
4.01 | None arising directly from this report.
5.00 | APPENDICES
5.01 | Appendix 1: Dashboard — Workforce Information Report Q2 2016/17
6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
6.01 None.
Contact Officer: Sharon Carney, Senior Manager, Human Resources and
Organisational Development.
Telephone: 01352 702139
E-mail: sharon carney@flintshire.gov.uk
7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS
7.01 Headcount and FTE

This will provide information on the current levels of the Council’s
workforce.

Organisational Age Profile

The purpose of providing the Organisational Age Profile is to enable the
Council to provide a guide to the future number of potential retirements
and succession plan by identifying any skill gaps that may arise. Without
an analysis of age profile, no workable long term planning can be made.

Employee Turnover and Stability (Including Redundancies and Early
Retirements)

This information will provide the awareness of trends in turnover rates
within the Council for potential measure to be put in place for high turnover
rates, if applicable.

Attendance

Attendance remains a high priority in the Council and will provide detailed
information on the areas for improvement for absence/attendance. Stage 1
and Stage 2 capability hearings are the formal stages of the Attendance
Management policy where sanctions including dismissal take place.

Performance Appraisals and Development
Reporting on performance appraisals and development will enable more
effective monitoring of potential training needs for future planning.

Page 38



mailto:sharon_carney@flintshire.gov.uk

Resource Management
This information will include the usage of agency workers within the
Council.

Equality and Diversity
Information will be provided to implementation measure to prevent
inequalities within the Council.

Page 39




This page is intentionally left blank



CORPORATEDASHBOARD

REPORTS
(FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL) '

2016/17 - QUARTER 2
(JULY - SEPTEMBER)

|
5

ey DI Y Fflint
Flintshire



2016/17 DASHBOARD
FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CUMULATIVE TOTALS

TOTAL HEADCOUNT LEAVERS / TURNOVER
6,602 ' W
TOTALFTE W 15657856 %

175,082
" AGENCY SPEND 2016/17 DAYS LOST PER FTE 2016/17
’ TARGET'2016/17 AT Q2 ' ! TARGET 2016/17 AT Q2 l

1.25m 4.65

ey DI Y Fflint
Flintshire



CORPORATEDASHBOARD

REPORTS
(NON SCHOOLS) '

2016/17 - QUARTER 2
(JULY- SEPTEMBER)

ey DI Y Fflint
Flintshire



QUARTER 2 2016/17 DASHBOARD
HEADCOUNT AND FULL TIME EQUIVALENT (FTE) - NON SCHOOLS

TOTAL HEADCOUNT TOTAL FULL TIME EQUIVALENT

3,432 2,746

01/04/2016 D9e5crease|of 30/09/2016 01/04/2016 De;rle?_f_g of 30/09/2016
3,527 (2.77%) 3,432 2,797 (1.86%) 2,746
5 : .
I
IS HEADCOUNT AND FTE - 12 MONTH TREND
3700
3500 Hsoho%qgﬂﬁﬁﬁ% 5
3300
3100 —+—Headcount
j000 | 2852 2845 2831 2826 2822 2815 3797 3788 yy63 oo rse 2748 ~m-FTE
| 2700 - - . = = = =
2500 T T T T T T T T T T .
Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16

ey DI Y Fflint
Flintshire




QUARTER 2 2016-17 DASHBOARD
AGE PROFILE - NON-SCHOOLS

Chief Executives Community and Enterprise
12
12 - 10 90 - 71 gl
10 - 2 ol 59
70 - e O 53
8 i 60 T
50 - 36
6 - 40 -
30 -
. 04 15
1 1 2 0
2 - 00 s A e
-- 0 T T T T T T T T T 1
' 0 . x . . w . . 16- 25- 35- 45- 50- 55- 60- 65- 70- 75
nv) 25-34 35-44 45-49 50-54 55-59 60-64 65-69 70-75 75 and 24 34 44 49 54 59 64 69 75 and
Q) over Over
(@]
q
a Education and Youth Governance
30
70 1 - 53 309 2455
60 - aa . 25 21
50 7 20 5
] 12 11
‘;g ] 15 -
20 - A3 10 - 3
3 2 2 5 - 00
10 1 A S 0 —
0 T T T T T T T T 1 T T T T T T T T T 1
35- 45- 50- 55- 60- 65- 70- 75 16- 25- 35- 45- 50- 55- 60- 65- 70- 75
a4 49 54 59 64 69 74 and 24 34 44 49 54 59 64 69 74 and
Over Over

CYNGOR

Sir y Fflint

-Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL




QUARTER 2 2016-17 DASHBOARD
AGE PROFILE - NON-SCHOOLS

Organisational Change 1 Organisational Change 2
85 84
100 - 86 90 - 76 7
| 80 61
80 70 -
60 - 49 49 48 60 -
30 50 -
40 - i
16 . 22
20 - 6 30 7 13
_— 208
0 T T T T T T T T T T 10 =
16- 25- 35- 45- 50- 55- 60- 65- 70- 75 0 T T T T T T T T T T
24 34 44 49 54 59 64 69 74 and 16-24 25-34 35-44 45-49 50-54 55-59 60-64 65-69 70-74 75 and
3 Over Over
Q
o)
5 People and Resources Planning and Environment
50 42 60 52
40 33 50 -
25 24 40 - 31
% 18 30 - 23 26
20 9 20 - 1
10 2 0 0 10 - 2 1 0
0 A S 0 A A e
16- 25- 35- 45- 50- 55- 60- 65- 70- 75 16- 25- 35- 45- 50- 55- 60- 65- 70- 75
24 34 44 49 54 59 64 69 74 and 24 34 44 49 54 59 64 69 74 and
Over Over

CYNGOR

Sir y

Fflint

Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL




/v abed

QUARTER 2 2016-17 DASHBOARD

AGE PROFILE - NON-SCHOOLS

250 ~

200 -

150 -

100 -

50 -

Social Services

224

Streetscene and Transportation

93

100 -

90 - i
74 £

163 80"
137 R 1
60 -
50 -
74 40 -
30 -
29 20 -4

6 10 -
A

N

16 -

24

25 -

34

35-
44

74

5
~

21

16- 25- 35-
and 24 34 44 49 54
Over

45- 50- 55- 60- 65- 70- 75
49 54 59 64 69 74

45- 50-

55 -

59

60 -
64 69 74

65- 70-

75
and
Over

CYNGOR

Sir y

Fflint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL




QUARTER 2 2016/17 DASHBOARD
ATTENDANCE - NON-SCHOOLS

DAYS LOST PER FTE AT 30/09/2016

30/09/2015 30/09/2016
2.74 2 O 7 5 2.75
Decline of 0.01

FTE DAYS LOST BY PORTFOLIO

g7 ob <:||

TOP 4 REASONS

1. MUSCOLOSKELETAL

2. STRESS DEPRESSION; ANXIETY
3. STOMACH, LIVER; VOMITING
4. INFECTIONS

U0

g

=R =
ochirUINULwsWL
]l Il ] Il 1 1

o

B Directorate Days Lost

o Q\é‘o Target FTE (Days Lost)

Sir y Fflint

Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL



QUARTER 2 2016/17 DASHBOARD
TURNOVER AND STABILITY - NON SCHOOLS

LEAVERS - Q2 LEAVERS - 2016/17

217 330

LEAVER REASON - Q2

150 -

100 -

61 9bed

50 -

S]ry Fflint

Flintshire

COUNTY



QUARTER 2 2016/17 DASHBOARD
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY - NON-SCHOOLS

GENDER BREAKDOWN ETHNICITY
' BME . 12 ETHNICITY BREAKDOWN ‘
MALE | FEMALE YA 1110
WHITE -2,313 (o Koo
1,11a08014 2,318 D .-
J NOT STATED - 1,077
1 (B246%) (67.54%) |
GENDER BREAKDOWN (%), = SEXUAL ORIENTATION

I Gay Woman/Lesbian - 11
B Heterosexual/Straight - 1,142
B Not Stated - 2,196
H Other -5
Prefer Not To Say - 60

B Female
m Male

— Sir y Fflint
' Flintshire




QUARTER 2 2016/17 DASHBOARD
RESOURCE MANAGEMENT - AGENCY

Agency Tenure Management Q2

60 -

40 -
H Placements as

s |

20 - .bh at 30/09/16 |

0 T T T T T T T
0-12 weeks 13-26 weeks 27-52 weeks 1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 4-5years 5+ years
o
Q
@
(9]
Q .
Agency/Headcount Pecentage by Portolio Q2

30.00% 24.74%

25.00%

20.00%

15.00% 5.539%

10.00% .53% ,
s.00%  2:15% 073%  1.53%  0.23% 0.00% 1.81% 0.58%  1.24% |
0.00% |

Chief Executives Community and Education and Governance  Organisational Organisational People and Planningand  Social Services Streetscene and
Enterpirse Youth Change 1 Change 2 Resources Environment Transportation

(Community) (Alternative
Service Models)

ey DI Y Fflint
Flintshire



CORPORATEDASHBOARD

REPORTS

; (SCHOOLS) '

" 2016/17 - QUARTER 2
(JULY - SEPTEMBER)




QUARTER 2 2016/17 DASHBOARD
HEADCOUNT AND FULL TIME EQUIVALENT (FTE) - SCHOOLS

TOTAL HEADCOUNT TOTAL FULL TIME EQUIVALENT
3,279 2,296
01/04/2016 Pgcrease o 30/09/2016 01/04/2016  Decreaseof  30/09/2016
3314 (-1.07%) 3,279 2,306 (0.425%) 2,296
?3 HEADCOUNT AND FTE - 12 MONTH TREND ‘

S]ry Fflint

Flintshire




QUARTER 2 2016/17 DASHBOARD
HEADCOUNT AND FULL TIME EQUIVALENT (FTE) - SCHOOLS (TEACHING)

TOTAL HEADCOUNT TOTAL FULL TIME EQUIVALENT
1,379 1,260
01/04/2016 D;;;f;:&gf 30/09/2016 01/04/2016  Decreaseof 30/09/2016
1409 (-2.18%) 1,379 1,281 Crer) 1,260
% HEADCOUNT AND FTE-12 MONTH TREND ‘

S]ry Fflint

Flintshire




QUARTER 2 2016/17 DASHBOARD
HEADCOUNT AND FULL TIME EQUIVALENT (FTE) - SCHOOLS (NON-TEACHING)

TOTAL HEADCOUNT TOTAL FULL TIME EQUIVALENT

1,900 1,036

01/04/2016 Decrease of 30/09/2016 01/04/2016  Increaseof 30/09/2016
1905 i 1,900 1,025 +1.06%) 1,036

HEADCOUNT AND FTE - 12 MONTH TREND ‘

2200
2000
1800
1600
1400
1200
1000

| 800

1900

—o—Headcount

-B-FTE

S]ry Fflint

Flintshire




QUARTER 2 2016/17 DASHBOARD
AGE PROFILE - SCHOOLS

900 -

800 -

700 -

600 -

500

9gG abed

400 - ‘

300 -

200 -

100 -

16-24 25-34 35-44 45 - 49 50-54 55 -59 60 - 64 65 - 69 70-74 75 and
Over

ey DI Y Fflint
Flintshire



QUARTER 2 2016/17 DASHBOARD
AGE PROFILE - SCHOOLS (TEACHING)

500 -

450 -

400 -

350 -

300 -

250 -

/G abed

200 - ‘

150 -

100 -

50 -

=

16-24 25-34 35-44 45 - 49 50-54 55 -59 60 - 64 65 - 69 70-74 75 and
Over

ey DI Y Fflint
Flintshire



QUARTER 2 2016/17 DASHBOARD
AGE PROFILE - SCHOOLS (NON-TEACHING)

450 -

400 -

350 -

300 -

|
250 /

200 -

8G abed

150 -

100 -

50 -

16-24 25-34 35-44 45 - 49 50-54 55 -59 60 - 64 65 - 69 70-74 75 and
Over

ey DI Y Fflint
Flintshire



QUARTER 2 2016/17 DASHBOARD
ATTENDANCE - SCHOOLS

DAYS LOST PER FTE AT 30/09/16

30/09/2015
1.23

1.

1 7 30/(1?{5016

Improvement of 0.06

d

6G obe

TOP 4 REASONS

1. INFECTIONS

2. MUSCOSKELETAL

3. STRESS DEPRESSION; ANXIETY
4. VOMITING; STOMACH, LIVER

FTE DAYS LOST BY DIRECTORATE

2.5

1.55

Primary Schools Secondary Schools Special Schools

mmm Directorate Days Lost

——Target FTE (Days Lost)

S]ry Fflint

Flintshire




QUARTER 2 2016/17 DASHBOARD
ATTENDANCE - SCHOOLS (TEACHING

DAYS LOST PER FTE AT 30/09/16

30/09/2015
1.36

0.92="7%

Improvement of 0.44

> TOP 4 REASONS

1. STRESS DEPRESSION;ANXIETY
2. INFECTIONS
3. STOMACH;LIVER;DIGESTION &

VOMITING
4. MUSCULOSKELETAL

30/09/2016

FTE DAYS LOST BY DIRECTORATE

2.5

1.70

Primary Schools Secondary Schools Special Schools

mmm Directorate Days Lost
——Target FTE (Days Lost)

S]ry Fflint

Flintshire




QUARTER 2 2016/17 DASHBOARD
ATTENDANCE - SCHOOLS (NON-TEACHING

DAYS LOST PER FTE AT 30/09/16

30/(;?{3015 1 ) 5 6

Improvement of 0.54

30/09/2016
1.56

d

FTE DAYS LOST BY DIRECTORATE

TOP 4 REASONS |- — \

1. MUSCULOSKELETAL

2. STRESS;DEPRESSION;ANXIETY
3. INFECTIONS

4. STOMACH;LIVER;DIGESTION &
VOMITING

[ obe

mmm Directorate Days Lost

——Target FTE (Days Lost)

Primary Schools Secondary Schools Special Schools

S]ry Fflint

Flintshire




QUARTER 2 2016/17 DASHBOARD
W
LEAVERS - Q2 LEAVERS - 2016/17

185 235

LEAVER REASON - Q2

29 abed

S]ry Fflint

Flintshire

COUNTY



QUARTER 2 2016/17 DASHBOARD
— TURNOVERAND STABILITY - SCHOOLS (TEACHING)
LEAVERS - Q2 LEAVERS - 2016/17

104 114

LEAVER REASON - Q2

€9 abed

o = N w H (6, ]
| L | L I |

Sir y Fflint

Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL




QUARTER 2 2016/17 DASHBOARD
TURNOVER AND STABILITY - SCHOOLS (NON-TEACHING)
LEAVERS - Q2 LEAVERS - 2016/17

81 121

LEAVER REASON - Q2

79 abed

Sir y Fflint

Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL




QUARTER 2 2016/17 DASHBOARD
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY - SCHOOLS

GENDER BREAKDOWN

MALE
510

(15.54%)

FEMALE
2,769 |

(84.46%)

G9 pbed

GENDER BREAKDOWN (%)

B Female

m Male

| BME*- 7

WHITE - 1,69

NOT STATED - 1

\

ETHNICITY

ETHNICITY BREAKDOWN (%)

u BME
1697 H White
$ Not Stated

1
i Y

N

SEXUAL ORIENTATION

M Bisexua 1-1
B Gay Man -3
I Gay Woman/Lesbian - 1
B Heterosexual/Straight - 603
H Not Stated - 2,637
Other - 4
Prefer Not To Say - 30

Sir vy Fflint

CYNGOR
o
- .. , o
COUNTY COUNCIL

Flintshire




QUARTER 2 2016/17 DASHBOARD
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY - SCHOOLS (TEACHING)

GENDER BREAKDOWN | ETHNICITY |

l BME - 2 ETHNICITY BREAKDOWN (%)
MALE FEMALE | } ' A
356 1 009 WHITE-630 (@& . - write
i ’ ' ~ NOT STATED - 696 b
0 (2583%) (74.62%)
= .
GENDER BREAKDOWN (%) | SEXUAL ORIENTATION
B Gay Man -3
B Female ¥ Heterosexual/Straight - 226 |
® Male

Not Stated - 1,139

N Other-1

H Prefer Not To Say - 10

oy DI Y Fflint
Flintshire




QUARTER 2 2016/17 DASHBOARD
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY - SCHOOLS (NON-TEACHING)

GENDER BREAKDOWN ETHNICITY |

| BME - 4 ETHNICITY BREAKDOWN (%) ‘ |
MALE | FEMALE v UM
WHITE - 1,000 f 0 . K ihiee |
16¢ 1,780 | NOT STATED - 896\ bl
' Ns42%) (91.58%) |
| . :
" /| GENDER,BREAKDOWN (%) SEXUAL ORIENTATION

M Bisexua l-1
B Female l B Gay Woman/Lesbian - 1 1
® Male Il Heterosexual/Straight - 377

H Not Stated - 1,498

M Other -3

Prefer Not To Say - 20

ey DI Y Fflint
Flintshire




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

Sir y Fflint
('E,!imo%!z.ire

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting Thursday 12t January, 2017
Report Subject Revenue Budget Monitoring 2016/17 (Month 8)
Cabinet Member Leader of the Cabinet and Cabinet Member for Finance
Report Author Corporate Finance Manager
Type of Report Operational
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to provide Members with the Revenue Budget
Monitoring 2016/17 (Month 8).

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That the committee considers and comments on the Revenue Budget
Monitoring 2016/17 (Month 8) report. Any specific matters for attention will
be noted and reported verbally to the Cabinet when it considers the report.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | EXPLAINING THE REVENUE MONITORING POSITION 2016/17
(MONTH 8)

1.01 | The Revenue Budget Monitoring 2016/17 (Month 8) report will be
presented to Cabinet on Tuesday 17 January 2017. A copy of the report is
attached as Appendix A to this report.

Page 69



2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
2.01 | As set out in Appendix; Revenue Budget Monitoring 2016/17 (Month 8).
3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT
3.01 | None required.
4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT
4.01 | As set out in Appendix A; Revenue Budget Monitoring 2016/17 (Month 8).
5.00 | APPENDICES
5.01 | Appendix A: Revenue Budget Monitoring 2016/17 (Month 8).
6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
6.01 | None required.
Contact Officer: Sara Dulson. Finance Manager
Telephone: 01352 702287
E-mail: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk
7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS
7.01 | (1) Revenue: a term used to describe the day to day costs of running

Council services and income deriving from those services. It also includes
charges for the repayment of debt, including interest, and may include
direct financing of capital expenditure.

(2) Budget: a statement expressing the Council’s policies and service
levels in financial terms for a particular financial year. In its broadest
sense it includes both the revenue budget and capital programme and any
authorised amendments to them.

Page 70



mailto:sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

APPENDIX A

 Sir Y Filint
Flintshire

CABINET

Date of Meeting

Tuesday, 17 January 2017

Report Subject

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2016/17 (month 8)

Cabinet Member

Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance

Report Author Corporate Finance Manager
Type of Report Operational
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This monthly report provides the latest revenue budget monitoring position for
2016/17 for both the Council Fund and Housing Revenue Account.

The report is based on actual income and expenditure as at Month 8 of the
financial year. The report also projects how the budget would stand at the close of
the financial year if all things remained equal.

The projected year end position, without any further action to reduce cost
pressures or to identify new efficiencies would be as follows:-

Council Fund

. The net in year position comprises of an operating deficit of £1.810m - an
increase in the deficit of £0.039m from the position reported last month.

. However, the overall projected in-year position has improved by £2.886m
due to the change in accounting policy for MRP as agreed by County
Council. This has the effect of eliminating the operating deficit.

. Projected contingency reserve balance of £4.268m

Housing Revenue Account

. Net in year expenditure forecast to be £0.037m higher than budget
. Projected closing balance as at 31 March,2017 of £1.061m

Page 71



APPENDIX A

RECOMMENDATIONS

1

To note the overall report and the projected Council Fund contingency sum
as at 31%t March 2017 and continue to support the work on actions and
options for mitigating action.

To note the projected final level of balances on the Housing Revenue
Account.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE MONTH 8 POSITION

1.01

The operating deficit reported is £1.810m above budget which is an
increase of £0.039m from the deficit reported last month. As resolved by
Cabinet work is ongoing to identify actions and options to reduce the
operating deficit through detailed analysis of overspending areas.

1.02

The operating deficit in-year is in effect ‘written-off’ by the change in the
Council's policy for accounting for Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)
which was reviewed and approved by Council on 6 December 2016 as part
of the 2017/18 budget proposals. This has resulted in a positive impact of
£2.886m on the 2016/17 budget as part of providing a major efficiency for
2017/18, and means that the projected spend is now £1.076m less than the
budget.

1.03

Transport Costs

The Council, along with neighbouring councils, was given notice in July that
one of its contracted transport operators, was going into immediate
liquidation. Urgent action was required to secure the school and public
transport subsidised routes operated by the transport operator.

1.04

The procurement of full replacement service providers is projected to incur
an additional cost of £0.440m for the remainder of 2016/17.

The Welsh Government has offered a provisional grant award to the three
local authorities affected for 2016/17. Negotiations are ongoing with Welsh
Government and the neighbouring authorities over distribution of the grant.
Negotiations should be concluded in time for the grant income to be
reported in the month 9 report.

Page 72



APPENDIX A

1.05 | Council Fund Latest in Year Forecast

The table below shows the projected position by portfolio.
TOTAL EXPENDITURE | Original | Revised | Projected | In-Year
AND INCOME Budget Budget Outturn Over/
(Under)
spend
£m £m £m £m
Social Services 58.534 60.829 61.425 0.595
Community & Enterprise 12.035 12.437 11.941 (0.496)
Streetscene & 27.011 28.527 29.306 0.779
Transportation
Planning & Environment 4.978 5.130 5.451 0.321
Education & Youth 11.225 11.404 11.405 0.000
Schools 86.162 87.762 87.762 0.000
People & Resources 4.319 4.646 4.646 0.000
Governance 8.159 7.716 7.781 0.064
Organisational Change 1 5.560 5.972 6.045 0.073
Organisational Change 2 2.244 2.572 2.196 (0.376)
Chief Executive 3.204 3.176 3.134 (0.042)
Central & Corporate 28.552 21.814 19.818 (1.995)
Finance
Total 251.984| 251.984 250.908 (1.076)

1.06 | The reasons for the projected variances are summarised within Appendix 2
with key significant portfolio variances explained in paragraphs 1.09 to 1.12.

1.07 | Significant Budget Movements between Original and Revised Budget
As stated in the month 7 report a review of Corporate Administration has
been completed which agreed to transfer portfolio administration teams
together into a combined service, under a single manager, that serves
County Hall and Flint offices. This has resulted in a budget movement from
Governance (£0.078m), Community & Enterprise (£0.026) and Planning &
Environment portfolios (£0.251m) to Social Services in month 8.

1.08 | The Education ICT budget has been delegated to schools from the ICT
Service, this has resulted in a transfer of £0.389m from Governance to
Schools.

1.09 | Streetscene and Transportation

There is a significant variance_within the portfolio of £0.779m which is a

Page 73



APPENDIX A

decrease of £0.099m from month 7. As referenced in 1.04, negotiations with
Welsh Government for a proportion of additional grant funding are due to be
concluded before Month 9 which will further reduce this variance. Full
details of all other variances are given in Appendix 2.

1.10

Social Services

Within Social Services there is a reported overspend of £1.320m for
Children’'s Services which mainly relates to Out of County Placements
(£0.626m) and Professional Support (£0.686m).

1.11

The reported overspend for Out of County Placements is due to a number
of complex cases and the new Social Services and Wellbeing Act which has
led to a higher number of court outcomes and placements which will need to
be tracked. A critical review of a number of placements made by court
order is being undertaken. The financial impact of this emerging pressure
will need to be considered as part of the Medium Term Financial Strategy
(MTFS). Legal and Social Services managers are working together to make
a compelling case for alternative care arrangements to placements at
forthcoming court cases, and so reduce the level of out of county placement
being made.

1.12

The Professional Support service currently has a small number of
permanent social work vacancies. Given the high levels of demand, and
complexity of work, there is insufficient capacity to support the
children/families within existing staffing compliment. Processes are in
place for recruitment to the vacant posts but, like other authorities, we are
experiencing challenges in recruiting experienced qualified social workers.
In the short term we have a small number of posts covered by agency staff
whilst we work to attract appropriately qualified, experienced and high
calibre staff. Work is being undertaken to develop a strategic approach to
managing demand through service development as well as attracting and
supporting permanent staff.

1.13

Programme of Efficiencies

The 2016/17 budget contains £11.282m of specific efficiencies which are
being tracked and monitored. An amount of £0.761m was approved from
the contingency reserve in the month 4 report to meet the impact of
conscious decisions to change proposals for household recycling centres,
community asset transfers, town centre car parking charging and workforce
essential car user allowances resulting in a revised efficiency target of
£10.521m.

1.14

Appendix 3 provides detail on the latest position where there is a variation
to the level of efficiency achievable compared to the budget.

1.15

This shows that it is currently projected that £9.398m (89%) will be achieved
resulting in a net underachievement of £1.123m - a decrease of £0.072m.
The changes in efficiency assumptions since month 7 are summarised
below:

Page 74




APPENDIX A

Previous Current Increase/
Original Month Month (Decrease)
Efficiency Revised Revised between
Efficiency Efficiency months
Portfolio 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17
£(m) £(m) £(m) £(m)
Planning & Environment
Self-financing for Public
Protection Services.
- Animal & Pest Control. 0.050 0.020 0.050 0.030
- Licencing Charging.
Various Planning
Efficiencies; 0.101 0.101 0.000 (0.101)
People & Resources
Finance Modernisation 0.135 0.093 0.092 (0.001)

1.16 | Inflation
Included within the 2016/17 budget are provision for pay (£0.936m),
targeted price inflation (£0.573m) and income (£0.185m).

1.17 | Following the allocation to portfolios of the provisions described in
paragraph 1.16 there is a remaining balance of £0.070m which is included
within the overall outturn figure.

1.18 | No provision has been made for non-standard inflation (NSI) in 2016/17.
Areas that may be subject to NSI increases will be monitored throughout the
year and any emerging pressures will be considered in future reports.
Reserves and Balances

1.19 | Un-earmarked Reserves
The 2015/16 outturn reported to Cabinet on 19 July 2016 showed un-
earmarked reserves at 31 March 2016 (above the base level of £5.769m) of
£4.375m.

1.20 | Taking into account the current projected overspend at Month 8 and
previously agreed allocations the balance on the Contingency Reserve at
31 March 2017 is projected to be £4.268m as detailed in appendix 4.

1.21 | Earmarked Reserves

The Council adopted a reserves protocol in September 2015 which set out
the principles around how the Council determines, manages and reviews its
level of reserves. Within the protocol is reference to regular reporting of the
latest position to Cabinet and Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.

Page 75




APPENDIX A

1.22

A summary of earmarked reserves as at 1 April 2016 and an estimate of
projected balances as at the end of the financial year will be included in the
month 9 report.

1.23

Housing Revenue Account

The 2015/16 Outturn Report to Cabinet on 19 July 2016 showed an un-
earmarked closing balance at the end of 2015/16 of £1.178m.

1.24

The 2016/17 budget for the HRA is £31.979m which includes a movement
of £0.080m from reserves.

1.25

The Month 8 monitoring for the HRA is projecting in year expenditure to be
£0.037m higher than budget and a closing balance as at 31 March 2017 of
£1.061m, which at 3.3% of total expenditure satisfies the prudent approach
of ensuring a minimum level of 3%.

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

The Revenue Budget Monitoring Report reflects the planned use of the
financial resources of the Council for the current financial year and details
the variations in the first eight months and the risks as known.

3.00

CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01

None required.

4.00

RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01

Achievement of Planned In-Year Efficiencies

The Council sets a challenging level of specified efficiencies to be
achieved in-year as part of its approach to annual budget planning. These
efficiencies are generated from the three year service portfolio business
plans and from corporate financial planning. In recent years the level of
efficiency achievement has averaged at around 85%. The current
assessment of the efficiency profile for 2016/17 shows that 89% of the
efficiencies would be achieved. There is an ongoing risk that the shortfall
cannot be mitigated other than by drawing on temporary funding from the
Contingency Reserve. There is a further risk that any ongoing under-
achievement of efficiencies will have a recurring and negative impact on
the 2017/18 budget as an efficiency target deficit would in effect be carried
forward. Risk status: stable/green risk for 2016/17 only.

4.02

In-Year Reductions in Government Specific Grants

This has been a trend in recent years whereby specific grants awarded by

Page 76




APPENDIX A

Government, and its grant awarding bodies, can be reduced in year and
with limited notice. In such cases the Council faces the difficult choice of
either reducing the services which the grants fund or absorbing the grant
deficit as an in-year cost pressure. Whilst grants are tracked and
representations are made to Government when any risks of grant
reductions become known, this remains an open risk though variations
should not occur at this late stage of the financial year. Although the in-
year risk has now reduced a significant risk still exists for 2017/18
onwards. Risk status: stable/green risk for 2016/17 only.

4.03 | Cost Pressures in Residential and Domiciliary Care

The Council is faced with having to meet high levels of annual cost
inflation for commissioned places and homecare packages in the
residential and domiciliary provider markets due, in the main, to the
introduction of the Living Wage and its impact on the payroll costs of
providers. In setting its annual budget the Council referred to the need to
set aside reserves of £0.646m to meet the additional inflationary costs for
2016/17 as a temporary funding solution, if additional funding was not
available to fund these increases. The Council has secured £0.500m from
the Intermediate Care Fund (ICF) to part fund these costs. This will mean
that only an amount of £0.146m will need to be met from reserves. The
projected budget figures for the Social Services portfolio for 2016/17 reflect
this net cost. There is no confirmation at this stage that the use of the ICF
in this way will be continued for 2017/18 and the inflationary costs within
the care sector will continue to increase as profiled in previous reports.
Therefore there are risks of significant cumulative cost pressures in this
sector.

Risk status: stable/amber risk for 2016/17 only.

4.04 | Municipal Mutual Insurance (MMI)

MMI was the predominant insurer of public sector bodies prior to 1992
before going into liquidation. Flintshire was required to pay a levy of 15%
of its share of the claims paid out previously and for any future claims.
Other local authorities likewise have to make a contribution. When MMI's
administrator published their 2015 accounts it showed that due to an
increase in the number of claims overall there would need to be an
increase in the levy to meet liabilities. A recommendation was approved in
2015/16 to meet a significant liability which reflects a 20% increase in the
levy. MMI have recently published their 2016 Accounts which indicate no
further increase in the levy at this time. The in-year risk is therefore closed
although this risk will remain next year as the risk of a further increase in
the levy remains open as legal work on claims is protracted with uncertain
outcomes.

Risk status: stable/green risk.

4.05 | Historic Child Abuse Settlements

A number of historic child abuse cases, which predate the existence of
Flintshire County Council, have been settled this financial year. There are
still a number of outstanding cases to be settled and it is not possible to
estimate the full financial impact of these at this stage. The financial

Page 77



APPENDIX A

provision set aside may not prove to be sufficient to meet the total liabilities
of all cases when closed. Within the month 3 report a contribution from the
contingency reserve was agreed to meet the settlement costs paid along
with any future costs. The settlement costs incurred to date total £0.146m.
Risk status: unstable/amber risk.

4.06 | Landfill Site Energy Income

The Council derives an income from the sale of electricity produced from
gas extraction at the Standard and Brookhill landfill sites. Energy
production and therefore income levels have been reducing over time.
There is potential for further loss of gas engine income through diminishing
levels of gas. The service is being out-sourced to remove the risk longer-
term and a budget pressure has been included from 2017/18.

Risk status: stable/green risk.

4.07 | Orphaned Industrial Site at Sandycroft

The contract for the removal of all Isosorbide Dinitrate (ISDN) chemical
deposits, site cleansing and site close-down will come to a conclusion in
the early winter. The contract has had to be flexible to meet the
unforeseen nature of the materials and how they were left and stored
given the unique circumstances of this case (the former Euticals
company). The contract to remove the higher level risk (ISDN) has been
completed at the end of December 2016. Final site works will be
completed in the early new year in readiness for site disposal.

Risk status: unstable/amber risk.

4.08 | Infrastructure for improvement works at Bagillt

Flooding events in the Bagillt area resulted in a number of properties being
flooded. Drainage works have been carried out to improve the existing
system and further investigatory works are being undertaken which are
revealing further issues that are being addressed. This risk is now closed.

4.09 | Procurement of Transport Services

As explained in 1.04 above there is an in-year budget risk of an additional
procurement cost of £0.440m for local transport services. The Welsh
Government has offered a provisional grant award to the three North East
Wales local authorities for 2016/17 only. Negotiations are ongoing with
Welsh Government and the neighbouring authorities on grant distribution.
Risk status: unstable/amber risk.

4.10 | Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)

The Council has reviewed its policy of accounting for MRP in conjunction
with its Treasury Management Advisors. This has resulted in a reduction
to the in-year amount and is reflected in the outturn position. This risk is
now closed.

4.11 | Out of County Placements

Page 78



APPENDIX A

The risk is the volatility in demand and the impacts on service costs which
cannot be predicted with any certainty. There is always a risk of significant
variances occurring although this area continues to be closely monitored.
The main influence on this increase is the new Social Services and
Wellbeing Act which has led to a higher number of court outcomes and
placements has increased the financial pressure on this service area.
Legal and Social Service Managers are working together to make a
compelling case for alternative care arrangements to placements at
forthcoming court cases, and so reduce the level of Out of County
placement being made.

Risk status: unstable/red risk.

4.12 | Children’s Services

Children’s Services are experiencing high levels a demand including child
protection work and the need for intensive support for older children with
complex needs. Priorities are being developed to help respond to
increasing service demand and to provide a greater range of targeted
community support.

Risk status: unstable/red risk.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix 1: Council Fund — Movement in Variances from Month 7
Appendix 2: Council Fund — Budget Variances

Appendix 3: Council Fund — Programme of Efficiencies

Appendix 4: Council Fund — Movement on Un-earmarked Reserves
Appendix 5: Housing Revenue Account Variances

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None required

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson
Telephone: 01352 702287
E-mail: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | Budget: a statement expressing the Council's policies and service levels
in financial terms for a particular financial year. In its broadest sense it
includes both the revenue budget and capital programme and any
authorised amendments to them.

Council Fund: the fund to which all the Council’'s revenue expenditure is
charged.

Financial Year: the period of twglye, mopths commencing on 1 April.

I(AUC rJ



APPENDIX A

Housing Revenue Account: the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a
local authority account showing current income and expenditure on
housing services related to its own housing stock. The account is separate
from the Council Fund and trading accounts and is funded primarily from
rents and government subsidy.

Projected Outturn: projection of the expenditure to the end of the
financial year, made on the basis of actual expenditure incurred to date.

Reserves: these are balances in hand that have accumulated over
previous years and are held for defined (earmarked reserves) and general
(general reserves) purposes. Councils are required to regularly review the
level and purpose of their reserves and to take account of the advice of the
Chief Finance Officer.

Revenue: a term used to describe the day-to-day costs of running Council
services and income deriving from those services. It also includes charges
for the repayment of debt, including interest, and may include direct
financing of capital expenditure.

Underspend: when referring to expenditure the actual expenditure
incurred is less than budget. Shown as a —ve. When referring to income
the actual income achieved exceeds the budget. Shown as a —ve.

Variance: difference between latest budget and actual income or
expenditure. Can be to date if reflecting the current or most up to date
position or projected, for example projected to the end of the month or
financial year.

Virement: the transfer of budget provision from one budget head to
another. Virement decisions apply to both revenue and capital expenditure
heads, and between expenditure and income, and may include transfers
from contingency provisions. Virements may not however be approved
between capital and revenue budget heads.

Medium Term Financial Strategy: a written strategy which gives a
forecast of the financial resources which will be available to a Council for a
given period, and sets out plans for how best to deploy those resources to
meet its priorities, duties and obligations.

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP): A charge made to the Council
Fund to repay borrowing taken out for capital expenditure. Authorities
must determine their own prudent MRP charge each year, taking into
consideration statutory guidance issued by the Government.

Page 80



Budget Monitoring Report
Council Fund Variances

MONTH 8 - SUMMARY

Appendix 1

Service Movement between [Narrative for Movement between Periods greater
Periods than £25k
(Em)

Social Services

Older People

Localities 0.074|Budget realignment to Learning Disabilities to partly
address pressures within external care provision.

Resources & Regulated Services (0.164)|Residential Care Homes (£0.093m) - including
reduction in catering recharges, Home care - reduced
pay cost projections (£0.045m), extra care - vacancy
savings (£0.010m), Day centres - vacancy savings
(£0.016m).

Other Minor Variances (0.003)

Disability Services

Resources & Regulated Services (0.121)|Virement of budget for Fee Increases & Inflation from
Older People Service.

Administrative Support 0.123|Admin vacancy savings now transferred to Business
Support service.

Transition & Disability Services (0.053)|Agency staff costs transferred to Childrens Services
Professional Support Service.

Other Minor Variances 0.004

Mental Health Services

Voluntary Sector Services 0.018]|Minor variances.

Intensive Support (0.022){Minor variances.

Residential Placements (0.105)| The reduction in overspend is due to additional joint
funding contributions from the Health Board which
were not previously agreed.

Employment & Occupation 0.028(£0.010m British Gas invoices. £0.004m Gardening
services adj to net nil.

|Ring-fenced budget (0.020)[Minor variances.

Other Minor Variances (0.002)

Children’s Services

Family Placement (0.046)|Reduction in projected cost of payments to Foster
parents.

Grants {0.019)|Minor variances.

Professional Support 0.177|There has been difficulty recruiting to vacant social
worker posts, coupled with an increase in service
demand this has resulted in a necessary increase in
agency staff - this includes costs transferred from
Transition and Disability Services.

Out of County Placements 0.141|Further increases in placement costs - now validated
following an extensive review process.

Other Minor Variances 0.011

Development & Resources

Charging Policy income 0.023|Minor variances.

Business Support Service (0.118)|This is a new service created within the Social
Services portfolio as the final outcome of the cross
Organisation review of Admin. These savings were
previously reported partly within other Social Services
areas and partly within other portfolios and relate to
short term vacancy savings and other non staff budget
savings such as stationery.

Finance /Deputyship (0.014)jMinor variances.

Safeguarding Unit (0.013)IMinor variances.

Good Health (0.016)|Minor variances.

Other Minor Variances (0.004)

Total Social Services (0.121)

Page 81



Budget Monitoring Report
Council Fund Variances

MONTH 8 - SUMMARY

Appendix 1

Service

Movement between

Narrative for Movement between Periods greater

Periods than £25k
(Em)

Community & Enterprise

Customer And Housing Services 0.011|Contact centre review shortfall £0.075m. Customer
Services minor variances (£0.017m). Connects minor
variances (£0.015m). Customer and Housing services
minor variances (£0.032m).

Council Fund Housing (0.030)|Vacancy savings identified to offset Telecare
pressures (£0.108m). Increased Telecare monitoring
charges £0.020m. Additional equipment costs and
repairs £0.030m. Reduction in Telecare income
£0.054m. Minor Variances (£0.026m).

Regeneration (0.037)|Reduction in market income shortfall £0.009m. Grant
recharges £0.036m.

Revenues & Benefits (0.020)|Further underspend on the Council Tax Reduction
Scheme provision (£0.016m). Movement in surplus on
the Council Tax Collection Fund (£0.005m).

Housing Programmes 0.032|SHARP feasibility works at Flint Police Station
£0.055m. Other minor variances (£0.023m).

Total Community & Enterprise (0.044)

Streetscene & Transportation

Ancillary Services & Performance

Waste Collection 0.018{Minor variances.

Bereavement Services (0.014)|Minor variances.

| Highways Network

Highways Network {0.075)|£0.061m of improvement works on the Bagillt flooding
event has been capitalised in the land drainage
programme.

Transportation & Logistics

Transportation (0.025)|Minor variances.

Other Minor Variances (0.003)

Total Streetscene & Transportation (0.099)

Planning & Environment

Business

Pollution Control 0.014|Minor variances.

Minor Variances (0.004)

Community

Licensing {0.034){Increase in Licensing Income
T/S Investigations 0.017|Minor variances.

Minor Variances

0.002

Development

Land Charges

0.023

Lower than expected Search Fee income received in
Period 08.

Development Management

0.111

Revised outturn for Planning Fee Income.

Minor Variances 0.001

Access

Public Rights Of Way 0.017]|Minor variances.
Minor Variances (0.004)

Strategy

Minor Variances 0.012

Management Strategy

Other Minor Variances 0.001

Total Planning & Environment 0.156

Page

82



Budget Monitoring Report
Council Fund Variances

MONTH 8 - SUMMARY

Appendix 1

Service Movement between |Narrative for Movement between Periods greater
Periods than £25k
(Em)

Education & Youth

Integrated Youth Provision (0.021)|Minor variances.

Other Minor Variances 0.002

Total Education & Youth {0.018)

Schools (0.000)

People & Resources

HR & OD (0.009)Minor variances.

Corporate Finance 0.001|Minor variances.

Total People & Resources (0.008)

Governance

Legal Services 0.012|Minor variances.

Democratic Services 0.026A new structure for Democratic Services has been
approved and implemented, the financial implications
of which are reflected in this month. The new structure
came into effect later in the year than expected which
has led to a higher level of workforce expenditure
being incurred.

Internal Audit (0.062)|A number of vacancies have occurred this financial
year. Whilst options for future service delivery were
being considered the in-year vacancy savings were
unable to be accurately reported until this month.

Procurement 0.004|Minor variances.

Business Support 0.030{The budget and projected expenditure for this service
has been transferred to Social Services as part of the
review of Corporate Administration. The underspend
which had been previously reported is now within the
Social Services portfolio.

ICT (0.000)|No variance.

Total Governance 0.010

|Organisational Change 1

Public Libraries & Arts, Culture & Events (0.001)|Minor variances.

Museums 0.000]|Minor variances.

County Archives (0.002)|Minor variances.

Leisure 0.001|Minor variances.

Community Assets 0.000|Minor variances.

Total Organisational Change 1 (0.002)

|Organisational Change 2

Administrative Buildings (0.032)|In-year efficiency on utility bills through the closure of
Phases 3 and 4 County Hall.

CPM & Design Services (0.046)|Additional design fees secured by the service.

Catering (0.041)|Additional catering income through leaner processes
within primary schools.

Minor Variances 0.004

Total Organisational Change 2 (0.115)

Chief Executive 0.010|Minor variances.

Page 83



Budget Monitoring Report
Council Fund Variances

MONTH 8 - SUMMARY

Appendix 1

Service

Movement between
Periods
(Em)

Narrative for Movement between Periods greater
than £25k

Central and Corporate Finance

(2.615)

As a result of changes to the Minimum Revenue
Provision (MRP) policy, as agreed by Council on 6th
December 2016 (£2,886m). Pension deficit recovery
increase £0.100m. Increased costs on commercial
property £0.035m. Support Services recharge
£0.140m, as a result of the reduction in services
across the Council the annual support service
recharges will be less than in previous years. Minor
Variances (0.004m).

Grand Total

(2.847)

Page 84



(aHNDg)

pseog YieoH AlISIaAun Jpejlempe)d
1s1ag woyy Buipuny a1e) yjeay
Buinuiuo?d |euonippe pajyabpnqun
0} anp si puadsiapun pajoafold

(Sv0°0)

(£50°0)

880

LyP'0 S92IAOG JuaWwa|geay

Juawubijeal [eljuajod Jayuny Joy
UOIBIapISUOD Uyyim Malaal Japun daayy

‘wg00'03 Jo

S90UBLIEA Joulw Jau |lesaaQ sbuines
Aoueoea wia) poys 0) anp w003
10 puadsiapun pajosfoid e sjoajel
Buiyels swes} Ay|eso (wgeso 03)

J0 suolNQUIUOD Judl|d pue (WEZ0'03)
10 awoou) Auadoud Buipnoul woy L 03
Jo puadsiapun pajoafoid e sey ase)
[enuapIsay (Wog| 03) Wes) Ssaody
Jo U104 3|6uig ay) uiyym woly sbuines
Aoueoen Jeak ||n} Jo ) nsal e se

ale spuadsiapun Jay)Q ‘Sasealoul 99}
Japiaosd o} 8ynquyuod o3 (49)) puny
ale)) ajeIpawlia)u| WOl PaAIRd3I Udaq
SBY aWodUul JJo-3U0 |eUOIpPY "puny
ale) ajelpawlaiuj ay) Aq jow Bulag
AjjuauIno s| puewap |BOO| 8y} Yaiym
Jo} (wE60°03) suoneldepy Jouiy
apnpoul puadsiapun pajosfold siyy uo
saouanul ulew JayjQ “sjualo Bunsixa
uo paseq (wepz 03) jo puadsiapun
pajoalold e sjo9|al aled Aejjioiwog

(9€2°0)

(299°0)

8LC'Sl

088'SL Sapl|eaoT]

ajdoad 43pI0

S92IAI19S 190G

pannbay uonay

asueleA Jofey Jo asne)

(w3)
aoUelIeA

yjuop ise

(w3)

9ouUBLIBA

(w3)
wnpno
pajoafold

(w3)
1ebpng

pasinay Ainleg

ZXipusddy

AYVININNS - 8 HLNOW

S9JUBLIEA pung [1Iouno)
{iodsy Bunoyuow jobpng

Page 85



|Ing Ul pasyun

uaaq Apealle sey S|y} Se dAI9Sal 4S
3y} uiyim Ajoeded Jsypuny ou S| 818y
‘juelb Jo uoingu)sIp |B20| pUB BUSILO
Aujqibia jo mainal Buimo)|o) awooul
(ds) @1doad Buipoddng ui legioys

Y210

ivZ0

(zLi'1)

(65¢€°1)

uoddng aAnensiuwpy

"eale a0IAIeS
a|e|joA [enuajod - maiaal Japun daay|

“Sobeyoed

papuny JUIO WOJ} 3WOdU} PaSEaIoU
pue s)so9o pajoaloid Juaund uo paseq
win}no pasiaal g pouad je (wy 1z2'03)
JO puadsiapun yueoiubis e s| aJay ]

(902°0)

(112°0)

81€0

6250

job6pnq oi1sualo4

"S)S00 M3lABJ pue Jojluow 0] anuijuo)d

"S)S00
Juawaoeld pajoalosd yuauno sjoa)ay

(s01°0)

(260°0)

elel

60¢°}

sa01u3s Ayligesig

“S}S00 MIABI PUB JOJUOW O} BNUNUOY)

PESLEY
suonjoafold pue jJ@bpng g1 ay)

uiyym paubijeas usaq aaey s)sod g0
pouad 1y "uoisiAoid JuaLIND JO $S3IXD
Ul S| [2A3] pUBWISP JBsh a2I1ABS

2560

1£€8°0

68061

8G¢' 8L

$90I1MDS pajeinbay P S92IN0SaY

seajAIBS ANfIqesIa

(¥00°0)

0000

961°0

S61°0

Sa0UBLIBA JOUIN

"sawoy aie) [enuapisay Jje sabieyoal
Buus)es jeusajul Joj suonoalosd
paonpai sn|d sawayos ajed

BIIXa pue sadlAIas a1eo Aep Japiaold
uiyim sbuiaes Aoueoea wia) Loys

(980°0)

(05¢2°0)

S8.'G

SE0'9

Page 86

sa0IM8g pajenbay B seninosay

‘awsyog ase) edx3 jui4 jo

S}S02 anuaAal Jaaw 0) 81// | 0Z Wwoly
swubijeal Buipuad Jeak |eoueul
JUa.ND Ul puadsiapun ulRJUIBIN

‘pleauoy

Buiob D4 wouy uoNgUILD Jo [aAT)
paonpail e ul Buynsal pajepdn uaaq
aAey siauped jo sj@Aa| uonguuo2
ay (S30M3N) a10)s Juawdinb3
Alunwwo) sajepp 1se3 yuoN

au) Joy yJuswsalbe diysisuped ¢¢
uoljoag pajepdn ue jo uoiejuawa|dw
pue jo mairal Buimojio4

(551°0)

(P51°0)

€2¢0

1.¥°0

uoynguuod juswdinb3 Ajunwwo)

paiinbay uopoy

@ouelieA Jofep Jo asne)

(w3)
aoueleA

yuop ise

(w3)

9oURMEA

(w3)
wnpno
pajoafoud

(w3)
196png
pasiaay

ELITNETS

T Xipusddy

AYVNANS - 8 HLNOW

S9JUBLIEA pung [1I9UNo0Y)
Hicday BuloHUGK Jobpng




3IN5501d SIgY

ajeing|e djay 0} Jauige) Ag penacsdde
se ansasal Aouabunuo) wouy

apew uaaq sey woQ|L 03 Jo uoneoo|e
uy "92IAISS JO BAJE SIY) UIYIM SHSU
Aoy ssalppe o} Jeis Aojdap o) paau
3y} 0} @nNp SI Y2IYM WED) JUSLUSSISSY

‘M3IABJ PUE JO}JIUOW O} anuluoD) pue Aing ul puadsiano Buiseasou| (6050 9890 ¥2€'S 8E9°'V uoddng |euoissajoid
‘unpno
Jo Buuojuow panunuoo - pasiwndo aq
ued yoddns jo poyjow aAlBuUIR)e OU
uaym apeuw Ajuo ale sjuswaoeld jey) ‘sjuswaoe|d
sainsua yoiym ssaooud |aued jsnqos| |enuapisal Jo sjsod pajosfoid Jualuno
e ybnouy) apew ale sjuswase|d ||y ay) sjoa|jal puadsiano Jo [aAa] dU1|980°0 €200 L0 86€°0 sjuawade|d |enuapisay
"saouemo||e fousueuwad
L1 S pue sagy |eba) uo sbuineg((050°0) (0v0°0) 9510 961°0 poddng 1 uohuanaid
“SIaplJo diysueipiend
‘30IAIBS B} UIY)IM |eloads pue aouapisal J0) SIapIo W
spuadsiano ajebijiw 0} Jno pawied aq UNo2 OS|e pue puewsap juawade|d
0} Juswubieas 1o6png J0) AlunpoddQ| 81e0 J8)s0) 0} anp sI puadsiano aul [¥60°0 1v00 (Roarard WA juswaoe|d Ajlwe4 e
SAJUAIDG S,udPjIyy maU
€200 #00°0 050'¢ 9%0'¢ SaduUBLEA JOUIN
‘Sawayos
yJom uo sBuiaes Aouedsea wis)y woys|(990°0) (8£0°0) 90v°0 vy 0 uonednaa() g uawiojdwg
‘Juesb (J¥INS) pund uonoy asnsiy
aoueISqNS ay) JO} JUBWHWWOD
awoou) paonpal e yum Jayiabo) sease
*M3IAB) 0} usyelapun Buiaq Yo Jo Jaquinu e u) sainssald }sod Aed|€/0°0 9900 ove0 120 asnsiy 2oueisgnsg
"S]S00
‘MalAal Japun deayy| swaoeld payoalosd Juaund sjoaay |y L 0 6£0°0 £88°0 v¥8°0 sjuawade|d |enuapisay
S92IMIBS Y}|edt [eyudspy
2000 €000 1200 6900 S9OUBLIEA JOUIN
"sbuiaes Aouedea
puE puewap Jasn adIAIBS paonpay|(0L0'0) (€90°0) ¥95'0 1290 saoInag Alljigesid g uolisued |
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
asueueA wnyno jabpng
paiinbay uonoy asueleA Jofepy Jo asne)| YIuo ise] | asuelep pajosfoid pasiAay ERTTVETS

T Xipusddy

AJVHWANS - 8 HLNOW

SadueleA pund [IPUN0D)
poday Buuojuoy Jebpng




MBIABI] puEB Jojluow 0] @nujuod

‘fiauonels se yons sbuines yels
-uou jo Juswala ue sn|d salpuesea
woyy Aluiew asue sbuiaes ay |
"UILIPY JO M3IABI uoljesiuebio ssouo
ay) Buimoy|o} soljopuod jo Jaquinu e
woyy Ayoeded ujwpe ouauab Jayebo)
Buibuuqg ao1nuas Mau e S| siy)

0000

(81L1°0)

SoL'L

14

201/M8g poddng ssauisng

M3IABI pUB JoJUOUL 0} 2NUU0D

"SJUSWISSBSSE [BIOUBU)

Jasn adIAes uiyIm spiebausip uiepad
10 Juawieal) ay) ul sabueyd Juadal

0} anp S| 8WOOUI Ul 9SEBIOUI BY |

(€51°0)

{(0€1°0)

(650°2)

(626°L)

awoou Aojjo4 Buibieyn

S90iN0Say g Juswidojanaqg

{2900

(2,0°0)

001

9.0°L

Sa0UBLIBA JOUIN

"MBIABI PUB JOJUOW 0} BNUNUOY)

‘uaIp|Iy2 Jidy} Joj 218D 0) B|qe aq 0}
sjuased Buipoddnsysialieq Buiaowal
Ul JuswysaAul aanoeold e si alay) jey)

pue jaw Buiaq ase sjualed jo spasu
3y} jey) ajesisuowsap o} sanuoyiny
|eo07 anbai o} sabpnl sa|jgeua yoiym
10V Buieqop pue saoiAlas |e1nog
AMBU 8] S| siy} Uo souanjul ulew ayj
‘suoneuiwalap [ebajunod Jjo joalgns
ay) ueaq aAey / yoym jo ‘sjuswaoeld
8 Bulaq ‘sjuswaoeid yuaied

pue p|iyo Jo Jaquunu ay} ul asealoul
pajuapaoaldun ue uaaq sey alay |

S8%°0

9¢9°0

090'v

vey'e

Page 88

sjuswaoe|d Aunos Jo 1IN0

pasninbay uopoy

(w3)
aoueUeA

asueueA Jolely jJo asne)

yiuop ise

(w3)

aoueUBA

(w3)
wnyno

pajoaloid

(w3)
j1e6png

pasiaay

ERITVETY

7 Xipusddy

AYVINANS - 8 HLNOW

SaoUelEeA pung |I9UN0D)
poday Bunoyucy 39bpng




VL0 G65°0 SZy'L9 62809 S82IAI3G |eidoog [ejo]
(£20°0) {560°0) 8671 £65°L S@0UBLEA JOUIN
"suones|uebio
Aieyunjoa o} sjuswded ul suononpal
pue sBujaes Aouedea wid) Hoys
"M3IABS PUE JOJlUOW 0} BNUUoY 0} anp Ajulew s puadsiapun ay (021 0) (9g10) 08270 G160 Y)leaH poo9
‘pleog Buipienbajeg sajlepn YHON 3y}
0} UoIINQUIUOD B pue "Juels) ajdoad
Buinoddng wouy awoosul jJobpng jJo
|lepdoys e pue sjuawssasse (S704d)
spienBajeg Auaqin jo uoneaudaq
By} Yum pajeioosse Sjsod [edlpaw
pue [eBa| |euoyippe Jo uoleulquwod
MBIABI pPUB Jo}UOW 0} BNUIU0YD e s| puadsiano payoafosd ayl (G010 €600 +16°0 1280 wun Buipsenbajes
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3g)
aosueuep wnyno j9bpng
paainbay uopoy asueueA Jolely Jo asne)| Yiuo Ise] | adueuep peajosfold pasiaay -RITNETS

ZXipuaddy

AYVINNNS - 8 HLNOW

S9JUBHEA pung [IoUNo)
Hoday buliojiuoly yabpng

Page 89



‘abueyo o} Aj@yj| a1e suonoaloid
pue s|ijejoa Ajybiy ale seale
asay) se A|asojo J0jluow 0} aNUKUOD

“WHE0 03 SOOUBHEeA

Jouiw Jayio "(woog 03) 4o pung
uo29||0D XB] |IDunoy) ay) uo snidins
pajedionue ue ajeaipui suonoalfold
(W6 .z'03) J0 Bwayos uonoNPay xel
|12uno?) auyy Joy uoisiaold pajabpng
au) uo puadsiapun pajoalold

(gzg0)

(5v5°0)

LyE 0L

988'01

sjjouag @ senuanay

‘MBIAB) PUB JO}IUOW O} 3NUUOY)

WSTO0F SOOUENEA

Joulw JayQ "(wee0 03) siueld
21J10ads 0} awl) J3214J0 JO uoeJ0||eal
au) o} anp Aouaioiye uojessuabay
'a)jel dwes au) je paseasoul

jou aney sabieyd alaym ‘Jeak

yoea uolje|jul yim aul| ul Buiseasoul
sjabie) awooul 0} anp sjaxew

ul w/#0'03 Jo |leploys pajewns3

24900

1€00

20¥°0

1120

uoljesauaboy

"M3IABI pUB JOJIuoW 0} nuijuod

‘W00 03 JO SSOUBLEA JOUlW JBYID
(WS0"03) dwooul aled9|9)] pasnpal
pue (Wwog0'03) siedas pue aseyound

juawdinba (wozo 03) sebieyo
Bunoyuow ||eo paseasoul wouy
Buninses aieos|a] uo sainssald ay)
josyo 0} payuspl wgQ L 03F jo sbulaes
Aoueoea poddng uolepoWIWOo2Y

€200

(800°0)

(1e£0)

(vee o)

BuisnoH pund |1ouno)

‘MBIA3J pUe Jojiuow 0} anunuo)

‘WSH0 03 Jo sbuiaes aoinies Jaylo
pue Aouedea wouy Bunnsal payuspl
saloudolyYe saoinag BuisnoH

pue Jawoisny JBYO 'Wee0'03

JO S2I0UBIOIYS BOIAIBS SJOBUUDYD
aJIysiul|4 pue SadIAIRS Jawo)sny)
"WwS/0°03 Jo |lejuoys e ul Buginsal
Jead [e1oueuy £1/910Z dU} 4O pud ay)
spiemo) uibaq o) pajoadxa s malnay
aJua) oo 3y} Jo uonejuawa|dw|

(020°0)

(600°0)

LiE'L

0ceL

s901A19g Buisnop puy Jawoisny

asudiaug g AHunwwon

paainbay uopoy

asueleA Jofejy Jo asne)

(w3)
aduelep

yjuop 3se

(w3)

aoueuep

(w3)
wniungo
pajoafoid

(w3)
1ebpng
pasiAay

asinlag

7 Xipusddy

AYVINANS - 8 HLNOW

SaJUeLEA pung [IDUNo0Y
Poday BULIOHUGOK 39BpNng

Page 90



Page 91

(zs¥°0) (96¥°0) Lv6'LL LEV'ZL asudiajug @ Alunwwo) jejol
‘WOZ0 03 JO SadUBLIBA JoUIW JBYID
"pasije)ded aq ||1m 100 SIY} ‘pud
Je2A 0} Joud panoidde s1 awayos ayy
3| "8jis uole)g 831j0d jull4 By je siom
Ajiqisesy o} buies awwelbold

"M3IAB) PUE JOJUOW O} 9NUNUOD | JYHVYHS 8y} U0 WSGO 03 JO @INssald{E00 0 SE0°0 €120 8/1°0 sawuwelboid Buisnoy

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
asueuep wnungo 196png
pasinbay uopoy asueleA Jofep Jo asne)| Lpuop Ise] | adueuep pajosfoid pasiAay LTIV ETS

7 xipusddy

AUYVHINNS - 8 HLNOW

SeduelBA pund [1Iouno)
Hoday Bunoc)iuGcy 39bpng




6000

(900°0)

1v9°0

€590

Sa0UBHEA JOUIN JBYl0

" Juelb ay) ui uononpal %/ 9 e
pawyuod aaey HAA Juesb g3 ay) o}
Bunes g1//102 Ul 8INssald Jayoel)
swuweiboid ul payoday "paodinosino
3Q 0) 20IAI9S 3} Joj paliedaud Buiaq
SJOBJJU0D pue A|yjuow palojuow
Butaq sjoae| 2woou) auibud seq)

‘WGQ0 03 JO SBOIAISS d)sem

UIY}IM SBOUBLIEA JOUIW SAIIRINWND

pue w0 03 JO 201AIBS BY) SSOI0B
s}s00 auy Jue|d [euolippyY "WOS0 03
Sa)Is D¥H Wol) 3)sem snoplezey Jo
[esodsIp Jo} 5)S00 [BUOHIPPY "WOZL 03
Jo awooul BuloAoas woly uoyisod
paroidwy “(wool"03) sulqg yoe|q

10} Buimouioq jenuapnuid jo JuswAed
paonpal Jeak-ped |eulq ‘sa)s

llypuel jiyyoo.g pue plepuelg auy

Je uonoelxa seb Jo sjeas| Buonpal
woyj sajes A}Ioujoa|8 paonpal o}
Bunefes woyZ 03 JO BoUBLEA 3SIBADY
‘WSG0°03 JO ||BjMoyS JedA-ul ue

ul Buynsal *J8qojoQ WOl paoUSWWOD
llypue je uoionpold AbBaug Jejog

8220

FAZAY

¢l9/

Sevr'.

uo1}93|0D) J)SEM

oueW.IOLIBd B SBdInas Kiejjiouy

uonepodsuel] @ auUddS}BANS

paiinbay uonay

aouepeA Jofey jo asne)

(w3)
adueleA

yiuop ise

(w3)

asueuep

(w3)
wnpno
pajoafoid

(w3)
196png
pasiAay

CRITNET

7 Xipusddy

AUVININNS - 8 HLNOW

SedUBHEA pung [1IoUN0)
podey Buuoyuow 1ebpng

Page 92



"108443 JeaA |jn} JO JUNODOE

Buniel 8172102 S4LN @yl ui paiinbal
84 [|IM UOIBJIBPISUOD ‘alojelay |
‘sjuswaJinbai uaisiaoid Aiojnielg

0} anp Aylun Aly6iy Buipuny

*§)S00 |euonippe ayy Buipuny o) piebal
Uim uodn paynsuod uaaq aAey M

‘wgz 03 ‘uonepinbi| ojul

Bulob Auedwod ay) Buimojjo) podsuely
|OOYDS 10} SDINIBS YHO) JOWIO)
Buusnoo 1oy Juawsainooid-a1 Buimol|oy
$])s00 ApIsqns [euonippe pajew}sd

9210

8210

00lL's

cle'y

Hodsuel] |jo0yog

“Jayoel) awwelboid ul pauoday
S41W Jo wed se mainal Japun desyy

"BaJR 9DIAJOS BY) SSOJO0R SSOUBLIBA
Joujw 0) 3jejal spuadsiano Jayun4
‘wEso 03 ueld 1sieoads aleys

o} Buyjim Jou sanuoyiny Buunoqyblen

180°0

8200

c09'¥

yesv

SOOIAIDG 90IN0SaY B SoNsIBoT

safsibo 9 uonenodsues]

Joyoel] awwesboid ul payoday
S41I Jo Wed se mainal Japun daayy

‘SHyI0M

aoueusjuiew Buiobuo Joj swea)

eale ay} Aq dn payoid Buiaq |s swi
4els pue s)so9 [euonippy swweiboid
abeulelp pue| ay) ui pasiended

uaaq sey juaaa Buipooy} )jj1beq au}
uo SyJom Juswanoidw Jo W90 03
'wog0 03 Buyelo) ‘pajedipnue uey)
Jaje| pajuswsaidwi aq [[im Uoloa||10D
JajIn 921G uolieqold pajuswaldu
udeq JoA Jjou sey woso' 03

Buijjejo) s|1PUNOD AHUNWIWOD/UMO |

0] SolRPWY) 10} pallajsuel)

Buiaq Ayjigel aoueusjulew ay)
‘(s1v9D) siajsuel] jossy AJunwwon)
uo suoissnosip Buiobuo o) ang

GGlL°0

180°0

[44°F2

Loy’

yomiaN sAemybiH

yiomjaN sAemybiy ]

pasinbay uopoy

aouepep Jofel jo asne)

(w3)
adueuep

yiuop ise

(w3)

aoueleA

(w3)
wnyno
pajoalfoid

(w3)
1ebpng
pasiAay

ERITNETS

7 ¥ipusddy

AUVWINNS - 8 HLNOW

S@JUBHEA punj [Iouno)
Yioday Buiioyuow 3abpng

Page 93



8.8°0 6.0 90€°62 12582 uoneyodsue.y g auads)aang [e)0L
(gz00) (920°0) LES°L €951 S@ouBlIEA JOUIN Jayl0
"S8JN0J SDIAISS |BIDIBWILLOD JOWIO)
40 S]S00 BUj sapnoul sIY | "wseZ 03
"jooye ‘uonepinby| ojui 6uiob Japiroid
JeaA |y jo Junoooe Bupiey '21/9102 Hodsuel; snoiaaid ay) Buimojjo
Jaye Buiwooyuoy si Buipuny 9An|  s201AI8S SO JuBwainoold-a1 BuImo)|oy
ou JI 81/210¢ S4LW Ul uoielapisu0) s)s00 Apisqns [euolippe palewis3|Zog 0 1120 90¢2'¢ 8¢6°L uoljepodsues |
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
aoueuep wnpno 196png
paiinbay uonoy aoueuep Jofey Jo asne)| uop ise] | asueuep pajoalfoid pasianay ELTTVETS

7 xipusddy

AUVINNNS - 8 HLNOW

Seouene A pung [1ouno)
Hodoay bulojiuo 19bpng

Page 94



Abajens

*2|qISS0d 0JoUM SJUSWI}ILIWIO0D
aAowWaJ/aoNnpal pue ainjipuadxs

PRRILILIOD JOJUOW O} BNURUOD {000°0) 0000 G910 G910 SSOUEBLEA JOUIN
S9JIAIBG paleysS
'3]qIssod aJaym SjusWwlwod
A0OWRJ/@3npal pue m;:«_ucmaxw
PaJIWWOD JOJUOW O} NURUOD (2v0°0) (820°0) ¥62'L [444" S90UBLIEA JOUIWN
$5320y
'91q1ssod a1aym SjusWWWOod
2AOWRl/EONP3) pUe wha__ucwaxm
PO}IWWOD JO}UOW O} NUKUOD (2z00) 2000 L6L0 06L°0 SQOUBLIEA JOUIN
‘paoipaud Ajsnoinaid
uey) paniwgns Bulaq suoneo)dde
JO aWIN|OA J2SS3| B Ul pajnsal
Sey Siyl "1SedaJo) ueld ssauisng
1A € 9y} UoIUM JUaJX2 3y} O} JOA0DRI
0} panupuoo jou sey Awouood
ey} Se WG| Z'03 2 0} pajewnse
sl |lejuoys ay} go pouad 1y ‘awooul
894 uoneoyddy Buiuueld wouy
IlejHoys ajqissod Jayuny Jo ysiy YbiH|221°0 882°0 (150°0) (6£€°0) Juawabeuely juawdoaag
juswdojarag
'9|qIssod ajsym sjuawyiwwod
aAowWaJ/aonpal pue ainypuadxa
Pa}IWIWOD JO}UOW 0} BNUKUOD (960°0) (z110) ¥08°0 9160 saoueleA JOUIN
Aunwwo)
.w_n_wmoa 2JoyM Sjuswjiuwod
9A0WBJ/a0Npal pue alnyipuadxa
PalIWWOD JOJUOW 0} BNUNUOD {810°0) (120°0) LEL'L 8SL°L S9DUBLIE/\ JOUIN
EEICIEIVE]
B Alunwwod yim vis Aq papuny
1sod OH3 | snid (ajesodion woly anp
Buipuny) s)sod OH3 Ateodws) XZ 104|6¥0°0 £90°0 8€5°0 v1¥°0 [onuo uonjjod
ssauisng
juawuonAug g buiuueld
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
aduelep wniRngo uomvam
pasinbay uopoy asueueA Jofely Jo asnes| yjuop ise] | asueuep pajoaloid pasinay CRITVETS

ZXipusddy

AYVNIWNS - 8 HLNOW

SedueleA pung [I2Uno)
Hoday bulojluo y9bpng

Page 95



(000°0) (000°0) 29218 29./8 sjooydg
6L0°0 000°0 Sov'LL yov'LL LINOA '@ uopeonp3 |ejol
(0v00) (590°0) ¥82 ¥ 6VE'v S83UBLIBA JOUIN
‘Bulob uo si sjuawaoeld ||e Jo malAal
pajejaq "pajuswa|dwi pue padojanap
Buleq ase swa)sAs Buuojuow
paaosdwyj ‘pusdsianc ayj ul uonanpal “(so)e|dway)
e yoddns o} payjuapl usaq sey sjuswaalby Juswade|d [enpIAIpu|
1s0d aAeg 0} }saAu} uy “leuonesado| o 1dieoal smoj(0) Ydiym ‘ainyipuadxa
si dnoub ysiul4 pue ysej y| pajoaloid Ajunod Jo INQ ul JuswaAoN 85070 990°0 (YA G502 uolssai60.1d B uoIsnjou|
YInoA 'g uoneanp3y
¥9L°0 LZE0 LSY'S 0EL'S juawuosaug @ Buluueld |ejot
"9]q1Ss0d 2JaUMm SJUBIHIWLIWIOD
SAOWR/8oNpaJ pue ainjipuadxs
PaRIWWOD Jojluow 0} 8nuUoy .[¥80°0 S80°0 16¥°0 434" ABGajeng yuswoabeuepy
"9|qISS0od 2I13UM SJUBWWWIOD
SA0WSI/30Npal pue ainjpuadxe
P3UIWWOD Jojluow 0} nuluod Z€00 ¥¥0°0 9/80 Z2€8°0 SS0UBLIEA JOUIN
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
asueuep wnyuno 196png
pasinbay uonoy asuepep Jofely Jo asnes| yjuop Ise] | asueuep pajoafoiy pasiaay ER]TVEETS

7 Xipusddy

AYVINKWNS - 8 HINOW

SaoueneA pung [1ouno)
{ioday Buiionuow yebpng

Page 96



$50°0 90°0 181°L 9LL2 92UBUIBA0Y [ej0L
‘M3IAR] pue Jojluow o} anuyuod “S80UBLEBA JOUIN|EF0°0 £v0°0 SY9'¥ 209y 191
"2oueleA ON|(0£0°0) 0000 1000 1000 yoddng ssauisng
*MBIAD) PUE JO}IUOLL O} BnNuUUoD "sgouBleA JOUIN 9200 1€00 /610 9910 juswaInooid
‘Ayioedes paonpal
sy} yim passasse Buiaq s| 201A8s
10 [9A9)] U} 3)Iym Jeak |eioueuly
9y} JO PUd BU) |JuN JUEDEA UIBWA) ‘SSIOUBDOEA 30I0)}I0M
0) pajoadxa ale salouedea Juauny| o) anp si puadsiapun pajoaloid ay] |(900°0) (890°0) 99¢€°0 YEY 0 Hpny [euaiu|
‘MOIAB) pUB JOJIUOW 0) BNUU0YD ‘saouelen Joul |(+00°0) 2200 681 2.8°L $90IAI8S 2NjeIooWwa
"MBIASJ pUB Jo}luoW O) BNUIjU0YD "saoueleA JOUIN [#20°0 9€0°0 8190 Z2v9°0 $201M98 [eban
2JUBUIBA0D)
800°0 000°0 99y 1404 S821n0Say § a|doad |ejoL
ESVERITE IGIESE
1038foud uonesiwapow 80UBUIH 3y} UO JUBWSASIYIRIBPUN
aoueuy} ay) ssaiboid pue Jeak-ul ue pue jabie) abieyoal
saljlunpoddo uonesiwixew awooul 3BWOOU| JuelS) BY) Ul ||ejUoyS B JO
aAleusa)e aso|dxa 0} anuguo)| sasudwoo puadsiano pajoaloid ayl (4200 /00 9v'¢ 88€C aoueul ajelodio)
"S3IOUBDBA 22J0)JOM JUBLIND 0} Anp
"MBIAB) puE Jojluow o) anupuod|  Ajsow si puadsiapun pajoasioid ayy |(990°0) (+20°0) €82 8522 ao B HH
S$92In0s3y '@ ajdoad
(w3) (w3) (w3z) (w3)
ajueleA wnyno jabpng
paJinbay uonay asuepep Joley Jo asne)| YUO ISe] | adueuep pajosfoid pasiAay LIV

Page 97

ZXipusddy

AUVININNS - 8 HLNOW

SeJUBLIEA pund [1ouno)
Jodey Buuojuop yebpng




‘(sbujaes Jeah

-ut Aq }9sY0) BwoouI [EJUBI Ul ||BJHOYS|69L°0 18L0 (850°1) (6€2'1) sjun [ewsnpu)
‘Jable}
SWOdU| BY} A0JE UB JBAO WES)
aY) Aq paunoas soay ubisap [euolippy |(¥80°0) {og10) .50 €020 sao|neg ubiseg ¥ WD
‘ainjonJisa) buiyels pasodoid ay)
Jo ynsal e se sbuines Aiejes Jeak-u||(182 0) (08Z°0) 0lLE0 0650 wewdo@Paa(q puy J8ssy Auadold
‘S30UBLEA JOUIN (000°0 (000°0) G100 G100 sbuipjoH Auadold
‘SadueleA JOUIN|E00°0 S00°0 (291°0) (891°0) s9)ejs3 |einynouby
“BUIAES SIY) U0 Joedwr Aew
syjuow BuIwod 8y} JBAO SUOIIPUOD
Iayjeam asIanpy ‘|leH Aluno) ¢ pue
€ 9seyd Jo 8Inso}d |y} woJ) pasi|eal
‘pauinbay Bupoyuop 8s0|D sBuines Ayjin Jeak ul (wse0'03)|(£00°0) (5£0°0) z6l'l 122\ sBuip|ing aAnessiuwpy
Z 8buey) jeuonesiuebig]
S.0°0 €20°0 S¥0°9 [41:}] | abuey) jeuonesiuebiQ [eyo
"MBIABJ PUB JOJIUOL 0) 3NUKU0D "sgouepeA Joully (0000 0000 $¥20°0 $¥20°0 sjossy Ajunwwo)
‘WEZ0 03 JO SIOUBLIBA JouIw
J2YO "uonesado jo Ajnuiuod ainsus
0} AJunwwod ay) 0} JaAOpUBY ||N} O}
Joud [1Duno) B S aJua0 ay) ajelado
0) Buinunuoo Yim paleioosse si
yolym Jeak siyy w0 03 Jo ainssaid
B Ul s)nsal siyj "/10¢Z yosen isi pue
9102 J8qwa23a( Jo pua 3y} usamiaq
paseud aq o} pajoadxa mou S| aljua)
"MB|ABJ pUE Jojiuow 0) SNUIUOD | BunsIaT [lPMAOH e JBjsuey 1D 8YL|Z60°0 £60°0 6E0't 9v6'€ aJnse
"M3IA3J PUE JOJUOW O} NUNU0D ‘saoueneA Jouly |(zoo 0) (+00°0) 1120 182°0 SaAIYoy Aluno)
"M31A3J PUB JOJlUOW O} aNUNUOD ‘SaduBLIeA JOUIN 10000 0000 ¥90°0 ¥90°0 SwnNasnp
'M3IARJ pue Jojluow 0} snuiuod ‘saouelea Jouiy [(510°0) (910°0) or9'L 9691 SjuaA3 B aJnn) ‘suy @ sauelqi] alignd
| 9buey) jeuonesiuebig
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
aoueueA wnyno 196png
pasinbay uopoy aoueuep Jolely jo asnen| yyuop ise | asueuep pajoalfoad poasiAay adnIeg

ZXipusddy

AUVINNNS - 8 HLNOW

Seoueuep pung [Iouno)
Hoday buuo)yuoy yebpng

Page 98



*M3IA3J pUE Jojluow O} BNUNUOD ‘saouelea Jouln [(2s0°0) (zv0°0) VEL'E 9/1°¢ EYUEET E N
(19z°0) {92€70) 9612 (A5x4 z abuey) jeuonesiuebiQ |€)oL
‘S90UBLIBA JOUIN|8Z0°0 8L00 0ico Z61°0 sa0eds uadp ® ALDD
"saoueleA JOUIN[(S€0°0) (££0°0) (1£0°0) 9000 bujues|d
"S9OUBLIBA JOUIN|(000'0) 1000 0020 0020 DH san|ioe4
“SB0UBLIEA JOUIN (000°0 {000°0) 6620 6620 Ajunodag g Bunjejaie)
‘DulAes siy) spiemo)
panquiuod aaey sjooyos Aewnd ayy
ulyum sassasold seuea] (W0 03)
1861} awooul aroqe pajoafold
awooul jeuolippe (W 195 03)](950°0) (260°0) 6690 26270 Buusien
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
aJjueueA wnpno jobpng
paiinbay uopoy asueuep Jofel Jo asne)| Yyuo ise | adueuep pajoafoid pasiAay aoniag

Z¥ipusddy

AYVWIWNS - 8 HLINOW

SeJUBLIEA pung [IPuno)
Yioday bulioyuoy 19bpng

Page 99



AIUIIIT £ T
|euoippe ‘pacnpal saa4 Jpny

‘ainssald
Jedh ui ‘Ayjiqe) Auedold [ensswwo))

‘Ajuo aunssald Jesh ul ‘saijANdY
Bunessuac) awoou) [euolIppY

‘sBuiaes Jayuny Agjuapl
0} SNUNUOD ‘SBIDUBIOIYT BTIOPMIOM

“Jojuow
0} aNUHUOD ‘BWOIU B)eqay XL

‘MBIAB) Japun deay Junoooy

\WysU US)
0 S99 }Ipny Uo puadsiapun JeaA uj

‘Auadoud |eprowwod
B U0 AjJljIqel| sajel ansawop
uou o} anp wg/ | 03 ainssaid Jeah u)

‘Ayunuoddo jo seale Auapl

0} Buinunuoo si ylom ybnoy) ‘woog 03
O JUBWIBABIYORIBPUN UE ‘SBIjIAIDE
Bunessuab awosu jruolIpPY

"Wg/Z 03 JO JUSWaABIYDRIRPUN
ue BuIMOYS SBIOUIIDIYD BDIOPIOM

(wozlL 03)
10 DWOoDUl 9)egal XUJe |euchippy

‘91 0¢ Jequada

Ui9 uo Jauige) Aq paaibe se Aojjod
{dHIN) UOISIACI BNUBASY WNWIUIN
auy} 0} sabueyd anp s1 (wogg'z3)
‘SJUBWISBAUI WO} dwodul pajoafoid
ueyy Jaybiy pue ‘Buimo.iog Jo [2A9)
paonpal 0} anp si (Wi | 1°03) ‘lUn02oY
JUBWISBAU| pue SUBOT [BIUBD 3y}

JUBLSBAU| puUe SueOT [BNjUBD|  UIyiM (WgEe Z3) JO pusdsiepun uy|619°0 (s66°1L) 81861 v1812 aoueui4 ajesodio) pue [enuad
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
aosueuep wnpno jabpng
pasinbay uopoy asueuep Jofel jo asne)| uop Ise] | soueuep pajoafoid pasinay aJinIeg

Zxipusddy

AYVININS - 8 HLINOW

S9duelEA pung [1oUno)

podey Buuojiuop yebpng

Page 100



bLLL (920°1) 806°05¢ $86°1L52 lejol puelo
‘WO L0 03 SOOUBIIBA JOUIN
‘worL 03
oedw) syl malnau| abieyoas ay) uo Bunoedw ‘pasealasp
0} Bujobuo si yiom ‘saoineg uoddng aAeY seale adlAleg uwoddng
‘sanss| Jeak
ui Buibiswa Aue 0 8sED Ul MBIAB) ‘uoljejjul play Aj|esjuas uo
Japun daay ‘uoneyu| pajejes Aed| (wp20°03) 1o puadsiapun ue sj 818y ]
"M3IAB) |BLIENIOR
apisbuo|e 10edwi J3pISUOD puB MBIASI ‘sajel Jno 1do 0} anp ‘WSz 03
Japun deay ‘Alanoday Joyaq uoisuad| Jo ainssaid A1aaodai Jioiap uoisuad
‘wezlL03
"MBIABI Japun daay| ‘awoou| |[BjpUIp ainssalid Jeak ul ‘awoduy |[BIPUIA asueuld sjeiodio) pue [euUa)
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
aoueleA usinpnQO jabpng
pasinbay uopoy asueueA Jofely Jo asne)| Yuo jse] | asueliep pajoafoid pasiaay ERITVETS

7 Xipusddy

AYVHNINS - 8 HLNOW

S@JUEBHEA pung [IDUN0)
HOday buliojiuoly 319bpng

Page 101



Page 102



2016/17 Efficiencies Outturn - Under or Over Achieved

Portfolio

Central & Corporate Finance
Additional Income Generating Activities.

Workforce Efficiency.
Total Central & Corporate Finance

Chief Executive's
Voluntary Sector Grants review.

Total Chief Executive's

People & Resources
Finance Modernisation
Total People & Resources

Education & Youth
School Modernisation.
Total Education & Youth

Organisational Change 1
Community Asset Transfers.
Total Organisational Change 1

Organisational Change 2
CCTV - Staff reductions.

Other - Campus Management.
Other - Maintenance.

Total Organisational Change 2

Community & Enterprise
Telephone Contact Centre savings.
Galw Gofal Contract Fees.

Council Tax Reduction Scheme.
Total Community & Enterprise

Streetscene & Transportation
Shared Specialist Plant with neighbouring authority.

Introduce non-generic streetscene roles (3 year plan).
Develop energy production at landfill.

Remove the existing policy of returning for missed bin waste collections.

Construction of a waste handling and biomass proeduction facility at
Greenfield.

Car Parking Charges.

Charge maintenance of Bus Shelters to Community & Town Councils.
Remove the subsidy for the Community Rail Officer.

Externalise the Stores Managed Service.

Pass Maintenance Liability and Cleanliness of Cemeteries to Town &
Community Councils.

Probation Service to take on Litter Collections in some areas.

Total Streetscene & Transportation

Planning & Environment
Staffing - service review.
Various Planning Efficiencies.
Total Planning & Environment

Total 2016/17 Budget Efficiencies

Met from Contingency Reserve

Revised Efficiency Target

Total Projected 2016/17 Budget Efficiencies Underachieved
Total Projected 2016/17 Budget Efficiencies Achieved

Appendix 3

. . . . (Under)/Over
Original Efficiency Revised Efficiency Achievement

2016/17 2016/17 2016/17

£(m) £(m) £(m)
0.500 0.200 (0.300)
0.500 0.222 (0.278)
1.000 0.422 (0.578)

0.070 0.080 0.020

0.070 0.090 0.020
0.135 0.092 (0.043)
0.135 0.092 (0.043)
0.187 0.123 (0.064)
0.187 0.123 (0.064)
0.544 0.474 (0.070)
0.544 0.474 (0.070)
0.040 0.020 (0.020)
0.030 0.015 (0.015)

0.005 0.015 0.010
0.075 0.050 (0.025)
0.100 0.025 (0.075)
0.030 0.015 (0.015)

0.329 0.591 0.262

0.459 0.631 0.172
0.050 0.000 (0.050)
0.115 0.085 (0.030)
0.100 0.035 (0.065)
0.075 0.035 (0.040)
0.100 0.080 (0.020)
0.200 0.165 (0.035)
0.020 0.000 (0.020)
0.010 0.005 (0.005)
0.050 0.020 (0.030)
0.050 0.000 (0.050)
0.100 0.050 (0.050)
0.870 0.475 (0.395)
0.127 0.088 (0.039)
0.101 0.000 (0.101)
0.228 0.088 (0.140)

% £

11.282

0.761

100 10.521

1" 1.123

89 9.398

Page 103



Page 104



APPENDIX 4

Movements on Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves

Total Reserves as at 1 April 2016

Less - Base Level

Total Reserves above base level available for
delegation to Cabinet

Less - allocation from contingency reserve to
meet historic child claims

Less - allocation from contingency reserve to
meet costs of summer play schemes

Less - allocation from contingency reserve to
meet shortfall in the essential car user
allowance efficiency

Less - allocation from contingency reserve to
meet shortfall in the community asset
transfers efficiency

Less - allocation from contingency reserve to
meet shortfall in the rationalisation of
household recycling centres efficiency

Less - allocation from contingency reserve to
meet shortfall in the Flint car park income
efficiency

Less - allocation from contingency reserve to
meet shortfall in the County Hall car park
income efficiency

Less - allocation from contingency reserve to
meet the resource requirements for specialist
social work for child protection

Plus - projected underspend as at Month 8

Total projected Contingency Reserve as at
31st March 2017

Page 105

£m

10.144

(5.769)

£m

4,375

(0.146)

(0.076)

(0.211)

(0.200)

(0.250)

(0.100)

(0.100)

(0.100)

1.076

4.268



Page 106



Q0UBLEBA J10UIW

¢900

0¥0°0

liec

[AXA4

saoIag Hoddng g Juswabeuepy

‘sjuswpedap

Jayjo o} sabieyoal Ul uononpal

B 0} saje[d wogn 03 "Sleusjew uo
ainjipuadxa paonpal 0} sajejal Waeo 03
‘pasijendes aq ues suoneydepe pajgesip
uo Jom 0} Buneas asnypuadxa ay)

JO 3wWos asneoaq s Siyt "sabieydal Jo9))
uo sBuiaes pajedionue o) sajelal WG90 03
‘suol)isod JuedeA JO asnedaq S)S0d

yels uo sbuiaes w9 03 Jo SISISU0D
w/Z1'03 Jo puadsiapun pajoafosd ay

€020

(£Z1°0)

6lv'6

9Y5'6

soueudUIERK B Sileday

S0UBLEA JOUI

{000°0)

{100°0)

20Z'L

02’1

S}S07) 80IAI9S PiOJpUB]

SOUBLIBA JOUIN

(120°0)

(1€0°0)

6611

0€s'L

yuawabeueyy sielsg

wnpualaal |1X34g
ay) Buimoy|oy sajel JsaJ9)ul Ul UoONpaL
ay) pue uawalinbai Bumolloq |ejo)
SaJlUsiul| 4 Ul uoonpal 3y} 0} anp sI SIY |
“YoH @y} 0} pauoipodde s)sod Buimolioq
pajedionue ay) uj uoyoNpal e o} saje|al
wy/ gL 03 Jo puadsiapun pajoafoid ay |

(191°0)

(£81°0)

860°L

S8C°L

sabieyn ueo - Buroueui4 jeyden

‘sa|padoud

PIOA UO S)S00 SDHM [BUOHIPPE au}

puny o} pasn aq |m Buines siy] “spioa
J0J SSOJ Jual [B)0) 34} MOYS 0} BUl| 8wodU|
8y} u) papnoul aJe asay] aydsai Jo
SJS0D pUEB XE} [19un0od se yans salpadoud
PIOA YIIM PAIBISOSSE S)S00 SNUSA3S

uo sbuines o} sajejas w003 parebpng
uBy) SS9| S| SSO| JuaJ pioA asnedsaq

os|e pue pajoadxa uey) Jaipes sajpadosd
9SNOH WO)SNY) O)Ul PAAOW 3ARY

sjueus) asnesaq Ajped si syl "Wye0 03
J0 BWoou| Jual [euonippe 0} sajejal

wQ| L 03 Jo puadsiapun pajosfoid ay |

(av00)

011°0)

(906°LE)

{964°LE)

awoou|

JUNODDY BNUBAdY buisnoy

pasnbay uopoy

aoueue Jofepy jo asne)

(w3)
soueLRA

yiuow ise

(w3)

aosueueA

(w3)
wnyno
pajoafoid

(w3)
1bpng
pasiAay

ELITNET

SXipusddy

AYVAINNS - 8 HLNOW

SoJUElIg/\ JUNOJJY aNUBASY BUISNOH

{ioday BuLGHUOR J9BpNg

Page 107



0000 (000°0) (000°0) Junoddy anuaaay Buisnoy (ejo |

9ouBURA JOUIN|(2£0°0) {(£g0°0) {8L1°0) {(080°0) Sanasay (woid) / 0L uonnquiuoy
‘mouoq o) Buiaey jo s)s0o
8y} PIOAE 0} S)SO2 9say) 0} BINQUIU0D
0] YHH 9U} JO SBale Jay)0 Uo Sjuawanow
ay) Buisn s1 wz90'03 Buluiewsas
a8yl ‘jendeo se pauisse|o-al uaaq
Sey pue ainjpuadxa anuaA3l PIOA SB
pauodal Aisnoiaaid sem sy} Jo Wage 03
*saiuadoud ploA uo 3iom SOHM SPIemo)
s)abpnq anuaaal woiy uonNgUuod

E 0} S3)Bja) WEGH 03 JO Juawaow 3y [{(000°0) €51°0 0ES0L 22001 (v30) @nuaasy woud aanypuadx3 leyded

(w3) (w3) (wz) (w3)
ajuelep wnyno 1°6png
paiinbay uonoy souelep Joley Jo asnen| yjuopw ise aoueueA pajaafoid pasianay 3JIAIDG

SXipusddy

AMVYIWAINS - 8 HLNOW

SadUEIe/ JUN0JJY oNUdAdY DUISNOH
Hodoy BuLIGYUOH 39bpng

Page 108



Agenda Item 7

Sir y Fflint
"E!Ew!o%!z.ire

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting Thursday 12t January, 2017
Report Subject Forward Work Programme
Cabinet Member Not applicable
Report Author Democratic Services Manager
Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Overview & Scrutiny presents a unique opportunity for Members to determine the
Forward Work programme of the Committee of which they are Members. By
reviewing and prioritising the Forward Work Programme Members are able to
ensure it is Member-led and includes the right issues. A copy of the Forward Work
Programme is attached at Appendix 1 for Members’ consideration which has been
updated following the last meeting.

The Committee is asked to consider, and amend where necessary, the Forward
Work Programme for the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

RECOMMENDATION

1 That the Committee considers the draft Forward Work Programme and
approve/amend as necessary.

2 That the Member Engagement Manager, in consultation with the Chair of
the Committee be authorised to vary the Forward Work Programme
between meetings, as the need arises.

Page 109



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | EXPLAINING THE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

1.01 Items feed into a Committee’s Forward Work Programme from a number
of sources. Members can suggest topics for review by Overview &
Scrutiny Committees, members of the public can suggest topics, items can
be referred by the Cabinet for consultation purposes, or by County Council
or Chief Officers. Other possible items are identified from the Cabinet
Work Programme and the Improvement Plan.

1.02 | In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful for a ‘test of
significance’ to be applied. This can be achieved by asking a range of
questions as follows:

1. Will the review contribute to the Council’s priorities and/or objectives?
2. Is it an area of major change or risk?

3. Are there issues of concern in performance?

4. Is there new Government guidance of legislation?

5. lIs it prompted by the work carried out by Regulators/Internal Audit?

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 None as a result of this report.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | Publication of this report constitutes consultation.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | None as a result of this report.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix 1 — Draft Forward Work Programme.

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None.

Contact Officer: Robert Robins

Democratic Services Manager
Telephone: 01352 702320
E-mail: robert.robins@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 110



mailto:robert.robins@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

Improvement Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of
the Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure
2009 to set Improvement Objectives and publish an Improvement Plan.

Page 111




This page is intentionally left blank



pl |

CTT

Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme 2016/17

:

oth March 2017
10.00

Revenue Budget monitoring 2016/17

Forward work Programme

Monitoring

Approval and development

DATE O&S Focus REPORT FROM
Friday 20t Capital programme — all members to be invited to Consultation Chief Executive,
January 2017 attend this meeting. Gary Ferguson,
10.00 budget Liz Thomas
Meeting
Thursday, 9t Revenue Budget monitoring 2016/17 Monitoring Sara Dulson
February 2017
10.00 Corporate Safeguarding Assurance and comment Fiona Mocko
Workforce Q3 Report Assurance and comment Andrew Adams
J Welsh Language Policy Assurance and comment Fiona Mocko
Forward work Programme Approval and development Robert Robins
jThursday, Quarter 3 Improvement plan Monitoring Comment and assurance Robert Robins

Sara Dulson

Robert Robins

Thursday
6t April 2017
10.00

Thursday
15t June 2017
10.00

Page 1 of 2



Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme 2016/17

Thursday
15t July 2017
10.00

yTT abed

Page 2 of 2



	Agenda
	3 People Strategy 2016-2019
	Enc. 1 for People Strategy 2016-2019

	4 Digital Strategy
	Appendix 1 – Proposed Digital Strategy

	5 Workforce Information Report - Quarter 2 2016/17
	Appendix 1: Dashboard – Workforce Information Report Q2 2016/17
	Dashboard - Total Figures (Schools and Non-Schools) - Q2 22.12.16
	Dashboard_Workforce Information Q2 16-17 v1
	Dashboard - Resource Management_Agency - Q2
	Dashboard_Workforce Information Q2 16-17
	Dashboard_Workforce Information Q2 16-17
	Binder2
	Binder2
	Dashboard - Total Figures (Schools and Non-Schools) - Q2
	Binder2
	Dashboard Cover Sheet Q2 -  FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
	Binder2
	Copy of Dashboard - Total Figures (Schools and Non-Schools) - Q2
	Dashboard - Age Profile  Q2 - NON SCHOOLS PART 1
	Dashboard - Age Profile  Q2 - NON SCHOOLS PART 2
	Dashboard - Age Profile  Q2 - NON SCHOOLS PART 3
	Binder2
	Binder2
	Dashboard Cover Sheet Q2 -  NON SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Headcount and FTE Q2 - NON-SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Attendance Q2 - NON SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Turnover and Stability Q2 - NON-SCHOOLS

	Dashboard - Attendance Q2 - NON SCHOOLS




	Dashboard - Equality and Diversity - Q2 - NON-SCHOOLS

	Binder1
	Dashboard - Attendance Q2 - SCHOOLS
	Binder1
	Dashboard - Headcount and FTE Q2 - SCHOOLS
	Binder1
	Dashboard Cover Sheet Q2 -  SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Headcount and FTE Q2 - SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Headcount and FTE Q1 - SCHOOLS - TEACHING
	Dashboard - Headcount and FTE Q2 - SCHOOLS - NON TEACHING
	Dashboard - Age Profile  Q2 - SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Age Profile  Q2 - SCHOOLS - TEACHING
	Dashboard - Age Profile  Q2 - SCHOOLS - NON TEACHING
	Dashboard - Attendance Q2 - SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Attendance Q2 - SCHOOLS TEACHING
	Dashboard - Attendance Q2 - SCHOOLS NON TEACHING
	Dashboard - Turnover and Stability Q2 - SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Turnover and Stability Q2 - SCHOOLS TEACHING
	Dashboard - Turnover and Stability Q2 - SCHOOLS NON TEACHING
	Dashboard - Equality and Diversity - Q2 - SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Equality and Diversity - Q2 - SCHOOLS TEACHING
	Dashboard - Equality and Diversity - Q2 - SCHOOLS NON TEACHING




	Dashboard - Resource Management_Agency - Q2




	6 Revenue Budget Monitoring (Month 8)
	Appendix A: Revenue Budget Monitoring 2016/17 (Month 8)

	7 Forward Work Programme
	Appendix 1 - Draft Forward Work Programme




